Human Services Board Agenda - Jefferson County
Jefferson County Workforce Development Center, 874 Collins Road, Room 103
Jefferson, Wl 53549
Date: Tuesday, October 10, 2017 Time: 8:30 a.m.

Committee Members: Mode, Jim (Chair) McKenzie, John (Secretary)
Jones, Dick (Vice Chair) Crouse, Cynthia
Kutz, Russell Schultz, Jim
Tietz, Augie
1. Callto Order
2. Roll Call (Establish a Quorum)
3. Certification of Compliance with the Open Meetings Law
4. Approval of the October 10, 2017 Agenda
5. Public Comment (Members of the public who wish to address the Board on specific agenda items must register

their request at this time.)
Approval of September 12, 2017 Board Minutes
Communications

Review of the August, 2017 Financial Statement

© © N o

Discuss and Approve September, 2017 Vouchers

10. Division Updates: Child and Family Division, Behavioral Health, Administration, Economic Support, and Aging &
Disability Resource Center

11. Discussion and Possible Action on Entering into New Professional Service Contracts (Interpreter, Cleaning
Services)

12. Discussion and Possible Action on Approving State/County Contracts for 2018
13. Discussion and Possible Action on Accepting Juvenile Justice Grant Funds

14. Discussion and Possible Action on Approving Status Change for Youth Peer Support Specialist and Intensive
Supervision workers.

15. Discussion and Possible Action on Amending the Aging & Disability Resource Center Advisory Committee
(ADRC) By-laws to Decrease Membership from 11 to 7 members.

16. Discussion and Possible Action to Support Lawsuit Against Opioid Pharmaceutical Companies to Recover County
Costs Associated with Opioid Abuse

17. Director’s Report

18. Adjourn
Next Scheduled Meetings:

Tuesday, November 14, 2017 at 8:30 a.m.
Tuesday, December 12, 2017 at 8:30 a.m.

A Quorum of any Jefferson County Committee, Board, Commission or other body, including the Jefferson County board of
Supervisors, may be present at this meeting.

Special Needs Request - Individuals requiring special accommodations for attendance at the meeting should contact the
County Administrator 24 hours prior to the meeting at 920-674-7101 so appropriate arrangements can be made.




ltem #6

JEFFERSON COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES
Board Minutes
September 12, 2017

Board Members Present: Jim Mode, Richard Jones, Russell Kutz, Cynthia Crouse, John McKenzie, Jim Schultz
and Augie Tietz

Others Present: Director Kathi Cauley; Administrative Services Division Manager Brian Bellford; Aging &
Disability Resource Division Manager Sharon Olson; Office Manager Donna Hollinger, and County
Administrator Ben Wehmeier.

1. CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Mode called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

2. ROLL CALL/ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM
All present/Quorum established.

3. CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE OPEN MEETINGS LAW
Ms. Cauley certified that we are in compliance.

4. REVIEW OF THE AUGUST 8, 2017 AGENDA
No Changes

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
No Comments

6. APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 8, 2017 BOARD MINUTES
Mr. Kutz made a motion to approve the August 8, 2017 board minutes.
Mr. Jones seconded.
Motion passed unanimously.

7. COMMUNICATIONS
No communications

8. REVIEW OF JULY 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Mr. Bellford reviewed the July 2017 financial statement (attached) and reported that there is a
projected positive year-end fund balance of $57,445. This includes our carryover from 2016 but
excludes any prepaid adjustments. This compares to a projected year-end balance of $63,812 at the
end of June. He also presented the summary and financial statements (attached) that detail revenue,
expenses, tax levy and variance by program within each Division and discussed the areas that are
having the most impact on the budget. He also presented reports showing Detox and Alternate Care
statistics (attached).

9. REVIEW AND APPROVE AUGUST, 2017 VOUCHERS
Mr. Bellford reviewed the summary sheet of vouchers totaling $543,769.13 (attached).
Mr. Jones made a motion to approve the August 2017 vouchers totaling $543,769.13.
Mr. McKenzie seconded.
Motion passed unanimously.

Page 1 0of 5




10.

DIVISION UPDATES: CHILD & FAMILY RESOURCES, BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, ADMINISTRATION,
ECONOMIC SUPPORT, AND AGING & DISABILITY RESOURCE CENTER
Child & Family Resources:

Ms. Cauley reported on the following items for Mr. Ruehlow:

The Wisconsin Counties Human Services Association executive board approved a motion to
disburse the additional $5 million dollars in the state Dept of Child & Families budget
proportionately among all of the counties.

The state has allotted $39 million dollars to eliminate the state’s children’s waiver wait list. We
need to have our plan submitted to the state by September 18. We have budgeted to hire two
new employees.

We have applied for two grants; one for $250,000 for the Juvenile Justice team that would
enhance youth services, and the other for $7,000 for mentoring and parent coaches for our CST
program.

The state will be rolling out a new juvenile justice assessment tool by early spring.

We have two youth who are in need for high cost placements. One will be admitted to an out-of-
state facility as no Wisconsin facility accepted them.

Behavioral Health:

Ms. Cauley reported on the following items:

Key Outcome Indicators for all teams are being met

o We had 18 emergency detentions in August

o We had 6781 crisis call compared to 6083 for last year at this time.

o We had 180 emergency detentions for the year and 202 suicide calls, which is the highest

in five years.

o The diversion rate is 73%
We received the opioid grant and have a new psychotherapist working now.
The Legislative Audit Bureau was here discussing our emergency mental health and emergency
detention processes with us. They are determining whether it is cost effective and if it would work
across the state. The report should be done soon and we will send it to everyone.
We hosted the 3-day “DBT in schools” that taught about the social and emotional curriculum in the
school system. It was well attended and there is great support for this. Schools are planning to
bring the trainers back again next year. This training should reduce the number of school referrals.
WCHSA (Wisconsin Counties Human Services Association) has applied for a waiver to allow
Medicaid to pay IMD’s (Institutions for Mental Disease) for residential alcohol and other drug
abuse treatment. Currently Medicaid does not pay for these centers, so we are is hopeful that the
IMD exclusion will be removed.

Administration:
Mr. Bellford reported on the following items:

We are meeting our KOI for reporting

We are working with the CLTS staff on eliminating the wait list

The Project Yes budget ends September 30 so we are monitoring those funds
Other program budgets are coming due

We are working on the new MUNIS accounting system

The fire alarm installation has begun

Page 2 of 5




11.

Economic Support:

Ms. Cauley reported on the following items for Ms. Johnson:

Our Key Outcome Indicators are being met and are as follows:
o We have 30 days to get 100% of all applications processed. We processed 98.86% of them
timely.
o The Consortium Call Center must answer calls timely within 95% of the time. The Call
Center was at 95.6%.
Rock County hired a new Consortium trainer.
We met with the Emergency Food & Shelter Board to divide donation money from the program.
We will receive about $1400 for our food pantry.
Ready Kids for School was held on August 12 and distributed school supplies to 728 children.

ADRC:
Ms. Olson reported on the following items:

The Adult Protective Services and Elder Abuse program key outcome indicators were met. APS
staff attended the National Adult Protective Services Conference in August. They shared that most
of the presentations were impressive and we will be sharing some of the topics at the I-Team
meetings.

The ADRC’s KOI has held at the 100% compliance rate to improve response time of functional
screen assessments. During the month of August, 25 of the 25 screens were completed and
calculated for eligibility within 14 days.

Our funding was approved and the renovations for the bathroom have been completed. The
replacement door at the front office will take 6-8 weeks.

The Home Delivered Meal Program’s KOI was met in August. There were 11 new home delivered
meal requests and one person was referred other viable resources. We served 2,328 meals, and
our average was 101 meals a day.

The Transportation Program’s KO1 is to meet qualifying ride requests 100% of the time. In August,
there were 429 scheduled 1-way trips, 47 were cancelled and eight trips were nc/ns leaving 382
trips for the Driver Escort Program. The Veteran’s Van provided 71 one-way trips provided. One
day was cancelled due to not having a driver.

Our Dementia Care Specialist team are staying busy with providing memory screenings and
community presentations. We are planning a Caregiver event for November.

We have been asked to provide a second class for the CareTalks program which is a grant to
provide caregiver education in improving communication with their medical providers.

The waiting lists for the Alzheimer’s Family Caregiver Support Program —AFCSP, the National
Family Caregiver Support Program - NFCSP and Title Il Housekeeping Program have been
eliminated. This will be brief however, as staff have been making referrals, but is a pleasant
feeling to know that there is not someone waiting for the past three years on a waiting list.

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON NEW PROFESSIONAL SERVICE CONTRACTS (Therapy Services,
Home Modification, Adult Alternate Care, Child Alternate Care)

Ms. Cauley reported that we have seven new service providers. (attached)

Mr. Jones made a motion to approve the contracts as listed.

Mr. Tietz seconded.

Motion passed unanimously.

Page 3 of 5



12,

13.

14,

15.

16.

DISCUSS AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON APPOINTMENT OF ATTORNEYS TO PROSECUTE TERMINATION
OF PARENTAL RIGHTS CASES UNDER 48.09(6) WiSCONSIN. STATS

Ms. Cauley reported on the history of the number of termination of parental rights cases done by the
attorney we retained, and the money it saved from children being in out of home care. In 2013, the
Title IV-E Foster Care allowed the state contract to help pay a percentage of attorney fees as well as
staff time working on these cases. The total savings since 2011 has been $8.3 million dollars. We
would like this process to continue and appoint attorneys to continue to do this. The resolution would
be presented at tonight’s county board meeting.

Mr. Tietz made a motion to approve the appointment of attorneys to prosecute termination of
parental rights cases under 48.09(6) Wisconsin. Stats.

Mr. McKenzie seconded.

Motion passed unanimously

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON APPROVING CAROL BATTENBERG FOR THE NUTRITION
PROJECT COUNCIL

Ms. Olson reported that Carol has completed her term for ADRC advisory committee and that the
committee recommended her to the Nutrition Project Council.

Mr. Jones made a motion to approve the appointment of Carol Battenberg to the Nutrition Project
Council.

Mr. Tietz seconded

Motion passed unanimously

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE RECOMMENDATION ON CHANGING AGING & DISABILITY RESOURCE
CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE BY-LAWS FROM 11 TO 7 MEMBERS.

Ms. Olson reported that more information is needed before moving forward.

Mr. Mode made a motion to postpone this agenda item.

Mr. Kutz seconded.

Motion passed unanimously

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON A MEMO OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE WISCONSIN
ASSOCIATION OF FREE & CHARITABLE CLINIC, INC FOR A VISTA WORKER

Ms. Cauley reported that the Wisconsin Association of Free & Charitable Clinic has been working on
this memo of understanding with some counties and VISTA (attached). A VISTA volunteer would
specifically help with the opioid epidemic issues. We were one of six counties to receive this
opportunity. We will hire one full time worker, employed by the Federal Government, who will have a
minimum of a Bachelor’s degree. This worker will start in November and will collaborate with our
AODA coalition.

Mr. Jones made a motion to approve a memo of understanding with the Wisconsin Association of Free
& Charitable Clinic, Inc for a VISTA worker.

Mr. Schultz seconded.

Motion passed unanimously

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION TO SUPPORT WCA RESOLUTION TO SUE OPIOID
MANUFACTURERS

Ms. Cauley presented several articles regarding the Opioid Epidemic and discussed the options to help
fight this epidemic. One of the ways that we can fight this is to join other counties and states across
the country to file a lawsuit against certain opioid manufacturers. Wisconsin Counties Association has
proposed a resolution for consideration. (attached) These lawsuits would be “...in an effort to force
the persons and entities responsible for the Opioid Epidemic to assume financial responsibility for the
costs associated with addressing, combatting and otherwise dealing with the Opioid epidemic....” Mr.

Page 4 of 5




Wehmeier said that we need to gather more information first and it will not be on the September
county board agenda.
Mr. Mode suggested that this item be postponed until the October board meeting.

17. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Ms. Cauley reported on the following items:

e On October 30, there will be a “housing summit” with speakers presenting information on the
increase in homelessness and possible solutions.

¢ The Executive Director of the Wisconsin Counties Human Services Association stepped down so
they will be recruiting for a new director.

e The Behavioral Health PAC asked the WCHSA Executive Board to consider retaining an attorney to
look into statutory changes for Child Alternate Care.

e We do not have enough counseling rooms. We will be discussing options with all of the
supervisors. One option could be to put a wall up in the large lunchroom located downstairs to
make into two conference rooms.

18. ADJOURN
Mr. Tietz made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Mr. Kutz seconded.
Motion passed unanimously.
Meeting adjourned at 10:50 a.m.

Respectfully submitted by Donna Hollinger
NEXT BOARD MEETING
Tuesday, October 10, 2017 at 8:30 a.m.

Workforce Development Center, Room 103,
874 Collins Road, Jefferson, Wl 53549

Page 5 of 5



Financial Statement Summary
August, 2017

We are projecting a positive year-end fund balance of $78,243. This includes our carryover from
2016 but excludes any prepaid adjustments. This compares to a projected year-end balance of
$57,445 at the end of July. Since last month, children’s alternate care and adult placement
expenditure projections have decreased. Offsetting these decreases, in part, have been increased
hospitalization expense projections.

Summary of Variances:

Revenue: Overall, revenues are projected to be unfavorable by $1,869,074. Last month, this
projection was $1,870,920. We ended 2016 with an unfavorable balance of $925,005.

e We are projecting CLTS revenue to be under budget by $1,427,033. Conversely, we are
projecting CLTS expenses to be under budget by $1,395,250.

e CCS revenues are projected to be under budget by $271,845. Conversely, CCS expenses are
projected to be under budgeted by $312,220. This is an improved position since we changed
the CCS rates.

Expenditures: Overall, expenses are projected to be favorable by $1,947,317. Last month, this
projection was $1,928,365. We ended 2016 with a favorable balance of $1,313,161. The favorable
projection in 2017 is primarily due to underspending of the following programs by the following
projected amounts: CLTS waiver of $1,395,250; salary & fringes of $498,453; CCS of $312,220.

Major Classifications Impacting the Balance
e Salary expenses are projected to be under budget by $282,172: Salaries were under budget
by $159,485 in 2016. Unpaid time and vacant budgeted positions are contributing to this
variance. Additionally, some other expenses — such as step increases, the COLA, positions
budgeted for mid-year, and payouts due to retirements — show up later in the year.

e Fringes and benefit expenses are projected to be under budget by $216,282: Fringes were
under budget by $223,167 in 2016. Fringes would correlate with salaries. Health insurance
expenses are projected to be under budget by $196,603.

e Children Alternate Care expenses are projected to be over budget by $105,041*: This
projection includes some additional, anticipated high-cost placement for the last few months
of the year; however, it is down from our projection last month. Children’s Alternate Care was
under budget by $28,613 in 2016. A comparison of costs incurred is below:

August $172,947 $181,311

Monthly Average $200,345 $168,305
YTD Total (through August) $1,602,762 $1,346,440




* = This budgeted analysis does not include our carryover of $267,180 from 2016.

Children’s Waiver expenses are projected to be under budget by $1,395,250: Earlier in the
year, we had been reallocating funds to other clients and adding clients to the program. This
has been somewhat halted with the State budget provision to eliminate the waitlist. We
submitted our waitlist elimination plan to the State in September, and will begin efforts at the
end of this year and throughout 2018.

Our 2017 CLTS budget includes $337,775 of State match expenses, but we are projecting to
spend our match with Children’s COP funds.

Hospital/Detox is projected to be under budget by $299,132 (Net basis):

Revenue $321,591 $369,933 $498,733
Expenditures $1,314,353 $697,932 $1,192,363
Net $(992,762) $(327,999) $(693,630)

We ended 2016 with a net balance of $(898,905). The improved 2017 projection is due to a
large collection in March 2017 for numerous prior months and also due to reduced
hospitalizations early in 2017. However, we are projecting significantly more hospitalizations
for the remainder of 2017. This is due to increased utilization of the State’s Mental Health
Institutions.

Operating Costs are projected to be under budget by $245,537: Operating costs were under
budget by $418,979 in 2016. Birth to 3 program costs, supplies and services, and capital
projected to be under budget by $58,583, $31,192, and $29,539, respectively.

Other Contracted costs are projected to be over budget by $51,793: These costs were under
budget by $319,816 in 2016. The change in position this year is due to increased costs in the
1915i Program, which are projected to be over budget by $46,644 in 2017, and increased
adult alternate care costs, which are projected to be over budget by $75,450. We have had a
few high-cost placements, and anticipate more in the last few months of the year. Offsetting
this are Miscellaneous Services, which include purchased care and services for certain
consumers, and are projected to be under budget by $71,478. This purchased care is under
budget, because of the work we have been able to do internally.

Community Care costs are projected to be over budget by $170,408: These costs, which
include the AODA residential costs, were over budget $115,217 in 2016.




BEHAVIOR HEALTH DIVISION: Projected favorable balance of $31,721.

In August of 2017, we received a net charge for Winnebago/Mendota of $104,862. In July of
2017, we received a net charge for Winnebago/Mendota of $99,235.

CHILDREN & FAMILY DIVISION: Projected unfavorable balance of $106,070, which is due to the
high cost of alternate care placements.

ECONOMIC SUPPORT DIVISION: Projected favorable balance of $48,869.
AGING & ADRC DIVISION: Projected favorable balance of $48,931.

ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION: Projected favorable balance of $54,792

Statements are unaudited.



£102/5/01 ko | albed preog ams ulg

(9v6'92) 8/8'0¥2 zee'ele 685091 6Y6'SLL 129'ZiL 0 LZo'zhlL ale) sjeulsly Jnpy
(86's€) 718'6EL 9gT'vOL -~ 60Z'th 9s8'ey L6¥'69 0 L6t'69 ale) sreulslly pIuD

(9/1'6v9)  ov0'zi8'€ 0/8'72T'C  YOE'I8S'T  ZTEL'EO8'L  LLL'GE0'T  0SL'8LE  L96'OLL'L $30JMISS PapIAOId
. ’ ANNIAIY &§3HLO ® SNOILDITIO0D

(850°0.6)  960°20/°6 868°€£L'8  ¥90°89Y'9 S60°Z80°F 1S2'G6L°S  SOV'OYS SYE'eSe’s Bulpun jesapad @ s3elg |ejoL

098'L #96'691 vZr'i9L  9/2'011 Z8L28  9L9'tLL  (88L'SS) #08'991 uonusnsiul Apey
(zz0'v2) BEY'COE  L19'6/Z  9Z¥'TOZ  00v'9YL Liv'o8L 099'v¢ 162181 sjuswihed soueysissy juslD
(g5¢'99) 091'¢6G'L 60892k Z0L'T90'L ~p98'LL/ 0/8'210'L G96'6VL G06'/98 sweiboid Z-M 3 W'l

0 0 0 0 0 , 0 0 0 8814 O} YUIF WYYV
ovL'ov 980'09 zeg'00k . LSo'ov 890'/S 188'09 {egz't) 1Z1'e9 saljiwe] g usIpiyd

0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 we.Boid poddng Ajwe4
(o18'61) £€9L'09 £5E'0F 601'0% $L9'vL 206'92 962'S 509°'L2 Hdl 3-Al

(s0L'c2) 862'G69 v65' 129 zeS'eor 6.0'¥SE 6CL' vy 62.'88 000'65¢ SPIY UINOA

718'62 vie'sze  8Zi'ese 9/8'81Z  “9/Z'1G1 ZSL'8€T  6L¥'GLL £ee'et ISTA wsloid

800'cZ 969'859  ¥0/'189 - LEL'6EY LTS'QEE GE1'95Y Le2'6L ¥Ov'9.¢ sweiboid uogenodsuei | /Buiby
29L'0v €90'v/8  GZ8'¥L6 . 60,78 .80Z'809 €LZ'66G  I8v'€eT  92L'6oe Jsjueg soy Aigesiq g buiby
(0ss'cl) 8LL'8lZ - 885'v0C Ziv'srl 90L'¢L 64GE'9¢ ] £00'SH 95¢'16 weiboid suoRdo Apunwiwod
(6¥1'2€) 9e0'90E  /88'89¢ ¥20'v0z /82611 6t2'191 G6G'P ¥G1'IS1 sweiboid uiesH [eloineysg
(bSL'v¥6)  2ZEL'0L9'L 8/£'699 Ler'el0L (Lvl) G8S'svy L9802 gL/'zze SIaABAA Hoddng |/ S,uaipliyd
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 uopnguued Aunod sied Ajwey
z98'l2 6.6'2/8 L¥8'006 986'18S  .009'/v¥ 19S'009  §90'0/¢  96¥'0€T uoled0|)y Ajunod oiseq s,uaipiyd
(9/8'2) 878'GG6°'L TL6'CS6'L . 668'EOE) ¥T6'LL6 186'10€L (166'0S9) TL6'CS6'L uopneoolly AJunod diseg Aoy B HIN

ONIGNNd Tvdaad3ad ? 31LVIS

S3ANNIAIH
£pZ'84 (0) ebzi8L (b51°292)  vev'i6lL ecr'vee 229619 (2£2°962) (L19143a) sN1dyns 13N
0 0g8'00t 0£8'00% 2Ll vl 0€8'00¥% 0£8'00% anjesay Buneledo 1e8ys eoueleg-910z Wol) piemio souejeq
£ve'ss (ogg'oovy)  (s89'zze) - (LG1°292)  (8EE'eSS) (16€'92) 119'619  (/90'969) (110143ad) SN1d¥NS ONILYHE3H0
L1€'2¥6'L  €0Z'20L'vT 988'$G/'ZZ 990'89P'0L GOL'GES'LL ~ 996'980'GL 9G6'€90°L 0LO'E€ZO'bL salnyipuadxy pajsnipy 10|
(720'698°L) €.E'10S'VC 662'2EY'TZ. GLB'00Z'OL (L9E'ZE0'LL  GZS'0LO'GL ZE9'€89'L Zre'9ZE'SL 2|qelleAy $82IN0SaY [B1O1
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Jajsuel] asuadxy piedald :sss|
0 160'098'e | /60'098'8  1€.'006'G .GL9'09V'% z€6'020'9 0O Z£6'020'9 (ut Joysuey g Ans| xe}) suonelad( Joj Buipung Ajunon
(rL0'698°'L) 9.Z'LvY'SL 202'2.S'EL  v¥8L'P6Z'0L 2691259 Zr9'686'8  7E9'c89t 0L0'90E'Z senuaaay bBuneladQ aie)g/IBISPS

- AJdVINNNS

SUETE
isnlpy

|s1bpa1 @
| a-1-A

wo:m_._m>_ 130bpng :o_uow_o.tn_ _ jobpng juonosioud |uonoofoid
pugJesA| 210z [puzaeep | pajesod |G-1-Adoud | Q-L-A
sjuswaleg |eloueuld - /1.0gz }snbny uo paseq uoljosfoid
SFANLIANIAX3 @ SANNIAIY 40 LNIJNILVIS
ININLHVYHTA STOINGTS NVYINNH ALNNOD NOSH3443ar



2102/5/01

jo 2z ebey

608'L (6ev) o2  (e62) (e88'v1) ore'e cog'ee  (eov'L2)
(rSv' L) cog'er 6re'e AV Al Y4 L09'69 196'L 0 L95'L

0 0 0 -0 0 0 0 0

0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0

(022) ¥06'Z PEL'T - 9g6'L 619’} zv'y 0 zey'L
(£85'8S) LL0'EST  88F'¥BL . ¥LL'89L  9¥T'LOl 659'621 000'0l 699'611
(625'2) 00S'vEy  LJ6'LEY  199'68T  918'8/Z 186'282 0 186'282
(608'82) 611991 OLEZEL  ovl'OLL €12'29 195'16 0 195°16
(0zg'0g) zoL'L8l Z76'05 L G112 S82'1L0L 829'001 0 829'001
(z61°1€) vZr'cl0') €£ZTPOL  9l9'SLL - BET'ThP GGZ'/69  008'SS §St'869
(€21'22) 900'661 £82'2/L  ¥00'0El ocL'sLL SG8'YLL 0 SS8'7LL
(826'9) 80095 080’6y - eegie G8/'85 69.2¢ 0 69.'2¢
(zgz'oLz)  LIS'6Z0°v  68Z°CI8'C  18£'989°CT LIL'LLYT 895°c957 0 895°€55°C
v0Z' LV 1116 LZew0lL . 808t o120z £26'08 0 £26'08
(c09'c6l)  199'959'C  8S0'€9V'Z  LOLLLL'L Z89'LL9'L 6£0'Z¥9'L 0 6£0'2Y9'L
(98'0¢) Z66'81l9  9L1'88G - 199'Cl¥  ZTE'09E 8,06 0O 8/0'26¢
(200'6¢) L08'969  ¥6.'.G9 vES'YOr  266/8l¥ 8zG'8Er 0O 625'8ey
(z21'Z82) 8150526 ORE'896'8  €P6'99L'9 OPSOLEY 668°1L.6°C 00029 G58°606°G
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(661'52) 96¢£'2eT £68'90¢ 1£6'%S1 9ee'vLL 8v6'rirL 0 Y6 vl
£88 §€9'08  815'l8e 060'281 120'2¢L 619'/81 00S'L 6.1'981
(zG9'LZ2)  OLL'wiT'L 8S0'S00'L . /08'6¥8 629106 G0.'899  00S'9Z 50Z'2%9
(£81'2) z89'cle 667'LLE LZ1'60C 128'1GL 999'202 000'L 999'902
(996'c 1) #06'G81L 8¢5 141 699'cZl 670'8. 8SE'vLL 0 BSE'YLL
(698'G) z96'1Zr  £69'GLk L¥0'L82  £0L'9¥e 6zL'2iz 0 62ZL'LL2
9/e'2y £GL'8Zr  62S0L¥ GEV'S8Z  1£1'85C ggo'cle O 989'cle
(s29'01) LL6'ZZL'L 982'280'L  [09'8V/ SYEiSrs L6v'12L 000'G L6Y'9LL
(lgg'est)  i1e¥'2i8  092'¥2L ¥66'V8S G2G'6.T ov8'zsty 0000l ov8'zLy
(o1g'9) G98'Z¥8  BEL'OL8 €06'L9  GEL'¥8E 89/'/166  000'9 89/'LGS
S0£'6¢ 96.'788'L 10L'¥Z6L - LOV'9STL  /6E'8T6 0/0'282°'L 0000l 0/0'2/2')
668'7S1 €29'G8E'l 8/9'0¥S'L  TB88'EZ6  6£8'689 GLG'el0'L  000'C S1G'LL0'L
(r€6°028°L) 92Z°LYY'SL 2OZ'TLG'EL  VBLVEZ'OL .T69'LLSD Z¥9°686'8 Z£9€89°L  0L0°90€°Z
(928°006)  08L°6€L'S ¥0L'8E8®  0TL'OZ8°C 165°68¥'C 268°¢61°C  lZZevLl  S99°0S0°C
9G/'9¢¢ L21'86E 126't69 lgl'gez g2yl osP'oOvYS  ZiEovL 8/0'v6€
(+50'89) LLZ'soL LSE0L  LpLoLL PE8YS Ge5'CL (sz1'9) 19908
(90t'p) #50'6L grov.  €0L'TS Zre'ee 659'ZS 0 659'25
1088l 188'751) v69'cLl 852'¢01L 1L96'8L G98'GLl £or'LS L9v'v9
(612'z8Y)  6LL'62L oy8'ore 6.0'08F orz'ziz 095'¥91 128'vE geL'eZl

pug Jeai _

wu:m_._m>_ jobpng juonoaloid | 396png |uoposfoid
1102 :Em dBOA pajeloud |Q-1-A J0Lid

uopdsfold| sjusw- |[siabpa @

a-1-A

snlpy | a@-L-A

pleog syes uig

SUOIBOO||\/ pUT 1834
s1809) Buyesado Joyo
Sa0IAISS [|0JAed ouj 'ddO
93IUL 0} yuig vV
jooyosald soag Asng
s1s0) wesbolid g 03 yuig
ssunp 9 sisuenyohsd yeis
1oaes) sakoldwig
seosuadxg weiboid
sooinleg R saljddng
s}so) aoedg
Buiures] yers
S1S0D 9NILVyIdO

sjyoauag abuul4 jejol
spjeuag obuli4 Jayi0
9ouBINSU| Y)BaH
Juswainay
Aunosg |epog
[ EENEEERNEE]

sabepp e)O
jwAjdwz pspoddng
saljie s|qels B sjes
snep 1opanT
pesylanQuswabeuep
uonusaIsu| Aje
Hoddng }/7 suaipjiyd
sweiboiyq uoneuodsuel | /6ulby
lsjuaD sey Aypgesiq g buiby
poddng o1wouoog
S90IAI8S WWoD dwo)
yoddng Ajunwiwo)
saljile @ s,ualpiiyd
UjjesH |eloireyeg
SIOVM

S3UNLIANILX3

S3INNIATH TV1O0L

19Y30 g SuoRI9|joY [ejo L
SONUBA_Y JaUl0
sjuswiasinquuiay 1so0)
suoneuo(
wesboid 15161
poddng 1/1 suaipjiyd



£102/5/01 Fjo ¢ sbeg
0 0 e 0 0 0 0 0
8¢€.'C 0002y 8¢l 'y 000'sz 050’8 62862 0 §Z8'62
L16'86Z  vEB'SYY  S06'CR/ 9GB'G6Z  11GL'8.E GZ.'%06 O §21'v0G
0 0 0 ; 0 0 0 0 0
882001 r6'L9S  06E'Z99 8Z9'v.C  £12'ceE res'ivr 0 ¥SG LY
0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 0
(s62'vS2)  Sv0'8ZL'L -0Sl'€l8 0€0'2SL  £8L'8LY 00528 O 005285
80v°0.L1 v8S°6L. 266688  ©2.6lF  6EL'CIC T2T'SLS  9£7'L9 986°20G
(ceser) o006tz 89L'g 009'v1 v8s'L Shr's 0 Svi's
16Z'12 18212 8/0'c6 ¥68'LY 95.'65 Z50'29 0 25029
GG8'0l 18€'SY 212'98 8£Z'0¢ #95'82 viv'lE 0 viv'lS
Z6£'981 OV6'LE 2E£'995 096'LSZ  80'9FL 8vv'6Se 98229 €12'z62
0 0 0o 0 0 0 0 0
(Leg'61) Leo'ze or9'ZL $5e'1LZ 800'8 YXA Q] 0 12¥'8
(L10'91) 16905 089'¥E v6.L'ce Leg'yl TAN 4 0 ozl'ez
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 000'09 000'09 000'0% 000:0¢ 000'0% 0 000'0¥
(to1'g) 000°ze 668'92 gee'le r00'clL £€6'/) 0 €€6°L1
660'y ¥88'/2 £86'1E 6858} £VE'S) zze'Le 0 zze'e
(582°18¢°1) 69vV01'Z  v8l'eel 616°20v'L 118799 €zZL'Z8y 91190} 100°9.¢
(g8z2'18e’L) B9K'POL'Z  WBL'EZ. 6/6'C0V'L  118'99 €Z1'z8y 9L1'901 200'9.¢
(665°52) 282 8ll'8lz  816°C91 68t°LS1 Lv8shl 005y LySohl
L20°) 88218 608°88 Z61'8G 8.1'68 10Z'Z9 005t L0L'.S
(02£9'92) 6£9'9G1 696°6Z1 9zZY'v01 LLE'z6 ov9'o8 0 ov9'98
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(569°1) 0G.°L 950°9 191°S GeL'e 280 0 180"V
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(0s2) 05/ 0 005 0 0 0 0
€ge'L 0 gge 0 0 206 0 206
(862'2) 000'2 0Ly 199'p gel'e sel'e 0 sel'e
(Leg'sv2)  912°69LC 619°€25C  vPLOv8'L 0SL6LS') 298'6G.°L €9¥'SPZ  668CLS
(6£5'62) 850'c9C  6lGgee 8E0'Zre ' +02'SET 8LE'S6Z  098'Z9L 8G¥'ZElL
adueuep | jobpng |uonosfoid | 3ebpng |uonoaloid [uonosfoid| sjusw- |s10bpa1 @
pu3JesA| 210z |[pugzieep | pejesosd |a-1-Adoud | @-1-A isnfpy | a-1-A

pieog apeis uly

safjijoe |euonoalion)
siayua) uonuayeg
suonminsu) Suued piyo

SIBJIBM PIIYD 'S'S™1
Aousby Buioe|d g swop dnois

Boid wwon aaisusyu;
18}so4 Juawiesl ] g a1e) J8)so4

VO AIVNYILTV ATiHD

aled Alunwwo) jejo
$1800 JoUiQ - uolnN Aiep|a
paieAllaq swoH - uouinN Aep|g
ayebaibuo) - uonuinN Apep3
aie) Alunwwo) Jayi0
Buint yuspusdapuj -ou) "ddo
suwesboid Aousnbuiisq ouj "ddo
saoIMeg uofepodsuel )
voddng Ajiwey
asnqy oisewoq By ejdosd
sao1n8g diysuelplens)
a1 sWoH aapoddng
FHVO ALINNININOD

SISAIR\\ 9OUB)SISSY [eDIPOIN [€)0
S17 sualpiiyd
SHIAIVM FONVISISSY TVvIIaan

9JuelsIsSSy Jusi|D |ejo )
SouesISSY Jual|D JOYI0 B diysuny
aouejsissy Ablougy
uoneuodsuel | 1SSy [eoIpsiy
jeuing 9 |eiauUny
sluswiAed jyausg z-m
dONVLSISSY INFITO

SIoqUIBIN pleog jejo ]
@spiwwo) buiby
Bujuies ).

[EI:TIR
swai(] Jod
SHIdWIN qdvod

s}s09 BunesadQ fejo .
Aepng |exded



£10zfsfl k4o abed pieog sy uld

(Z1€°2¥6")) €02°20L'vT 988'VGL'2Z  990°89V'9L SOL'G8S'LE 996'980°GL 956°C90°L 010°€Z0'b S3HUNLIANIdX3 TV1iOL
£6.°18 Pr6086°L 2£2°2€0'T  629°028°L 260°G66 896'c0e’L  10L°L2v  098°L88 pajdeu0) JOYIO [ejoL
008'9¢ 000°0¢ 008'99 ~ 000'0Z 089zl 2126 0 z/T'6 UOISSILILLIOD MBIAIESID
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S$1S0D JeaA Iolid
(82¥'14) Zz0'89Z  ¥¥S'96L  189'8/L  /68'L6 G69ZEL 0 G69'ZEL S8OIAISS SNOBUER|ISISIIN
/£6'9 zsL'eye 611062 121291 £29'oLl cLIr'e9L 0 cLb'eol siso [edipa|y Auejjrouy
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 sweiboid Aeapuiopm
G6'E 0 S/6'S 0 0 G/6't 000'2 G/6'L uieoH [eyusiy Aousbiowg
(geg'or) 000°051 g9r'e0l 000001 os8'cL 11689 0 116'89 ddi 3-Al
rv9'or 980'/6€  0SL'Shy veL'v9T  G89'sSe 0L'66¢ O 191'662 weiboid 15161
0 0 0 ) 0 0 0 0 sasnoH AemyieH vaov
0 160'629  -160'629 Lel'oly  6bSTlE LeL'OLY leL'oly 0 uonnquuod Auno) sied Ajwed
061's. 186'19C  J00'€ve - L€'8/L  8.8'SeL 8EL'60C 9.6 79£'902 (MVIN-UON) 21D SjewIslY HNpY
: GILOVYINOD ¥3HIO
(06612)) €SCvLE'L €9ST6L L  G£2°9.8 126795 TE6°L69  PC6'9S5L 866015 sjeydsoH [ejo
0 0 0 : 0 0 , 0 0 0 are juanedu Jsy10
(8LZ°12L)  €SE'P9L'L  WLIOCPO'L - GET9LL  €€9U/Y 9E6'PLG  YEZ'LGL FAV N XA SsjnIfisu| yyeaH [elusiy
(112) 000'0SL 6826Vl 000001  QEE’/8 966'7ZL  00.'G 96Z'LLL S80IAIBG UojeIyIXoleQ
o SIV1IdSOH
170501 LZY'L82'T Z9Y'988T  L¥6°0Z5 1  190°291°) Z5v'065°1 0 Z5V065°1 a1eg sjeussyly plIyo [e10l

(29/'zv) 005'G0L 8€/'Z9 . geeol 168'8T° 8re'LE 0 8re‘Le
asueuep | jabpng |uonosfoig | 19Bpng |uonosloid |uonossfoid| sjusw- _m..mm_um._ )
pugaeap | 2102 |puzJesp | pajeloid |d-1-Adoud | G-1-A isnfpy | @-1-A

a1eD J8YJ0 9 JoYAYS




L102/5/01 £ jo | ebed weibouq Aq Arewwing

(999) 165'G1L 165'GL 0 55592 8EL0L SHYIA AN9IdTHONI 6815
816 0£6'LS 0£6'SS 000'p _ 59E'PpS gLy OOHOSIHd 5338 ASNE 8815
Lee'g 190'92 06188 £2129 -~ ggg'sg 16119 wes | seoeg pereulploo) 0Z1S
816°L rese 05b'6 9169 . BlbE £98°2 S1NINSSIASSY dIHSNIM 501§
069'SY 9l 0kS ov0'riL r95'€02 . £9¥°169 119202 NOILLNIAHILNI ATHYI G218
280'8 LOS 18E°69. 08889/ - pS6'852 G8k'992 WSILNY 2805
(aLe'9) gk’ /98 9z /98 0 . 295'8.8 0 IMVLNI AONINONITIA HLNOA 0805
L2L'oe L8968 000051 £91°09 89V°£01L £SOk ddl 3-Al 0205
£20'G 8re'9 8pe'g 0002 . spee 126 ONINIVHL LNTFHYd H31S04 8905
(89) 0 0 0 . 89 0 Ad-AIVM SL1 SNIHAIHO  2ros
(z8) 0 0 0 28 0 HW-AIVAM S11SNIHATHD  LPos
(£25°01) £/9'€21 pProreg’L L2£'045'L . £86'cy8 £64'6v9 Aa-AlvMm 511 SNILATIHO  0p0os
(b152) 0002 00001 000'E . pISPL 0 SIMOVS 98205
(oI i 281818 89E°92P 985201 . 0£L'P9E IS1L'P6 SAMINY- 319YLS ® 34vS 1205
0 00009 00009 0 © 00009 ISNAY DILSANOA 0205
(8LL'8L2) (8L1'gL2) 0 gLL'8lZ o 8£5'702 885702 5O dOD SNIHATNHD 1215
Sra'Ll 208901 182'051 8/6'ck 65168 861151 62029 INIJAISNILNI ® ATHVI VA 6005
0.5 046 015 0 o 0 0 SNIAIT LNIANIJIAN! HLNOA 8005
0 0 0 0 . K 0 SIDHYHO JLVLS SAIY HLNOA 9005
(ograrL) 918°'120°L SS50SL'L  BEL'SCL 2520/4LL 9pO'pEs’L £6/'€£99 SAIV HLNOA 5005
0122 0 1/8'p8 L1818 (o220 18061 L5818 JHYD dIHSNIM 2005

taz'osl rSe'e08’L 525'026'2 LLLLLLL wmm,m.NNm.u Lo - pSBBLLE L92'45L°L NOILLYOOTIV OISvd SINIHAHO  L00S

saljiwre ® USupyo

Lz2'1e 620282’ 1G/°121'0L  221'6889 wom.o,‘mw,.m . 92y'S6l'B 8LL'GyS'9 yifeeH Joineysy [elo |

Zse'es 9ps'LEe 098°658 y1E'82E (Qog't) zeeose 821'85¢ SNOLLNTOS LNINHIMOANI HLNOA 0805
(sgL'521) 065'pirL 980°L68 96252 8/80/2  ZLOWWY y69'8L1 WVHDOHd ISL6L £905
0 0 0 0 L EeTAY 552 HLIVIH WANIWN AONIDHIWNT bros
609'26 0 0 0 (eog'z6) 0 B09'/6 HLIVEH TVANIW Q31411430 €705
(e02L) pes o ge8L12 662°LL1 /09gs peSOlE 186151 ANVHD %0019 VAoV  1£05
9.£'0p (e85°84) 18Y'85/°L  690'/88'L (gse'sll) s9z'oppL y22'505°L IOIAGIS NNOD dWOD 2205
CIINEN 899'G8/ L0L'SPS'L  BE0'09L pO89BL  986'EESL z8l'2eL WYHDOHd 1HOddNS ALINNWANOD  §205
(tor'el) 201 082'92 82192 g05'el  leg6e 821'92 YOO8 HLTVIH TYANIW LL0S
(6v2'68) 02891 028'228 000°'901 69095/ 568228 182'99 HLTVIH TYAINIA AONIODHINT 2005
(stv'02) 280418 ZE0'P LS 000°LE1 Liplee 086'625 £052E1 SNVYH Y3a3InT €005
9l'28 61£852°1 969625  L1£'142'E . SoviopY 229'L€2E NOILYDOTIV OISVE 0005
yiesH Joineyeg
a0uelep Aot xe ] ainjpusdxy snusasy sinppuadx3y SnusAsSYH wesboidg

1°6png uonoeloid fenuuy

a|qesonepun () 1©9yg Arewwng

JuswWialels [eroueUly sainjipuadxg 9 enusAay / 10z 1snBny uo paseq uoloslold
weibold Jo ajels ININLHVYJIA STDIAYIAS NYINNH ALNNOD NOSYHIA43r



£102/5/01 € jo g obey weiboig Aq Arewwng

LE6'8Y 166661 S8 LG8 L pBLLS9'L £/8°9/8°L 2L8'sesL’L J9usp pYAY % buiby [elo]
Loy it 18159 LE1'S9 0 reo’Le gce WNOOOY MOIOST SPIYSA S6LG
92001 0866 026'68 o662 76862 ov6'62 31 37LIL £9Ls
srL'el £02'elL 606'6L 90/'99 999'99 909°'99 IOIAHIS AALHOLANS a-1il 6515
(og1'22) 286'55 L00°18 520'62 812'c01 11062 IsSNay "¥3a13 8sis
r/8'8 888 vi8°8 986, 0 986', dS0S 1515
{o06'81) LL9'GE vi0 L L £0F'501 220651 2517001 SIVAW A3H3AMNEA SSIS
S TA T (888°22) £EE'251 122'SL1 reLest 860281 STVAN LIS FSIS
9/L' 62L'L 000’9 L22'p ¥22'e L22's Q-1ll IDIAH3S INOH-NI 2516
269°L1 £Sh'2 656'0£2 905'€22 | 085082 68202 NOILVIHOdSNYHL LSLS
0 0 0 0 966 966't SHIVL THYD - ONIDY 0515
(oLgol) 0 556°/1L 556'21 800°42 861'91L dISN 8205
(1e02) ££5°9Y 09£'c01 128'9S L6E°S0L 12895 SIOIAYIAS FAILOTLOHG 1INadY 2408
LLo'9e 102°16 685'Er L 288'sh 262°001 96168 SIDIAYIS 1I43NIG ILVIS 9405
209 000°2¢ 00028 0 gel'ee 09l NVEDOHd JIHSNYIAHYND §205
(eps'99) (Sov'ep L) 859'08. £90'7.8 . £96'/58 52816 IDHNOSIY TGYSIA/ONIDY 8705
858°L L 0L0'6L 80061 569'LE £50°€E ddnS WY- SHIWIFHZTY 2105

oday % uoisiaiq buiby

698'8p 670'905 2Lr'682'2  £98'6./1°L 69£°9GL°2 681'669°L uoisiaig Hoddng oluouody fe10]
050'9 0 0 0 0 0509 FONVLSISSY LNID 0015
8821 0 0 0 0 6821 1354 €405
(008) (008'p) 0 008y .0 000't 1S4id NIHQHD 1208
0 0 6£9°'951 6£9°951  B96'621 696621 AYHOOHd ADHINT 1505
0 0 0 0 -0 0 AYHOOHd 2-M 5505
LF6'201 0 988°LLL 988°L41 n #6201 NINQY 3HVO AVA d1IHO €505
(L19'2s) 6v8'0LS 188'956°L 8£0°'9Pp L . 007’9202 oveZhy'L FONVYNILNIVN IWOODN!  LS0S

uoisialg voddng olwouooT

.. 859'/¢gv'8 8L2¥0S'E ssljlwe B UaIpiiyo €10}

(0z0'901)  69g'228'Y 958'808'6  /8Y' 186V
aoueleA Aro xe} ainjipusdxgy anusasy 2inipuadxg anusAsYy welboid
1©b6png , uonosloid renuuy

s|qrioneiun () 198yg Arewwng

Juswialels [eioueuld sainipuadxg R enNUBASY /10Z 1shbBny uo paseq uoijosloid
welbold jo aje1s INIJNLHVYHIA STADINHIAS NYINNH ALNNOD NOSHI44ar



L102/5/01

g jo g obed

welboid Ag Arewwng

199Yg ooueleg woly buisde-uon sepnjoul souelep SI0N

@oueeg 1SN
£p2'8. 0 £02'20L Y2 £02'20L°v2 - 9885/, 22 62L'EEB 2L [el0l aNVHD
Z6L'rS (ger'sig's) 66E 78S LE8'66E'6 {1 095'88k L6.°'8GE'6 UOISIAIQ SSOIASG SANRASIUIWLDY felo]
0 (oggoor) 0 ocgoor  (ossooy) o 08800V spun Bujsde-] UoN 193ys souereg
£15°08 850°€9¢e 8G0°£9E 0 S8p 2 | EiEA 0 AVI1LNO TWLIdVDO 0l2s
9¥6'9¢ (160°0£8'8) oL6'89l £L00'666'8 Amvo 4588) . G55'06 865°.L76'8 Are e ) R PESYISAD 0025
(6e'8Ls)  (68E'8LL) (68e'8.24) 0 o 0 0 pases|D Juswabeuew 0615
888'6L 88E'8.LL 88882/ 0 _,,oom‘wm, - . oos'se 0 weswsbeuel 0615
GLL'S P4 A FA A 0 i59op . -~ 020°L8 £9£°0L S3OIALE3S A3ANNINN 281G

S UOISIAIQ S92IAISG SANRIISIULIWPY
@oueHeA Aro xe] sunlpuadx] Snusasy Sinpuadxg snusAsy weiboud
1°bpng uonosloid enuuy

ajqeloneun ()

1o9yg Arewwing

Juswaje)s |eloueuld sainjpuadxg B anuaAdy / 10z isnbBny uo peseq uonoaloid
weiboid jo 91e1s INFNLHVY4IA STDIAYIS NYINNH ALNNOD NOSHIA43r



L1E'€81$ (9107 Yotepy nip) wuop 1ed "BAY QLA 9102
vL9'sLZ$ yauopy 4ad "BAY QLA LL0OZ
z86°'1$ 69% pr0°812% 515> oLL 10T yatep jejol
0G0'/1$ 055% 0S0°ZL$ e T 9Jels JoInO - 5,00y
rL'0L$ 88€% 298'09% IS 9 ‘ $,00Y
52s$ Li$ g2ss ie L Buinr pusdepu) pesinedng
v62$ 6$ 61173 veY vl diysuelpieng pazipisqng
[i1443 L$ Zr6's$ V6. 9z aueD diysuy
/86'L$ 852$ 126'LY$ 98l 9 BWwoH dnoio
0$ 0% 0$ 0 0 | - [9A87 SWOH J9)s0
0% 0% 0$ 0 0 [elosdg aied 181804
8sy'1$ 5% Gz9'18% 8LG'L 9g 8.eD Jo)so4
Li-Yydiep
¥29°661% (910z Arenigad niyy) yiuop Jod "BAY QLA 910Z
00v'vLT$ Yjuoy 1ad "BAY QLA £10Z
9v8°L$ 453 £12'902% 988¢ Zhi L10zZ AMenuga fejoy
00¥'GL$ 055% 00¥'GL$ 8¢ b 3]e)S JO N0 - 5,00y
918'01$ 98¢$ 968'79% 89} 9 S, 00
Gz6$ 6L% G2G$ 8¢ L Bbuia] pusdapul pesiatedng
v6C$ LIS BLL'PS Z6€E vl diysuelpieng pazipisqng
zees 8% 008'G$ 00/ Gz a1eQ diysuiy
712'G$ £92$ 866'6E$ Z51 L BwoH dnoi9
0% 0% 0% 0 0 | - |9AS7] BWIOH 49)s0
0$ . 0$ 0$ 0 0 [e1oadg e Ja)so
0LE'LS vS$ G/6'GL$ 8lv't 89 a1 19)s04
;, J1L-Aieniged
60%'602$ (91.0z Arenuep nuyy) yyuoly 1od “BAY QLA 9102
980°2Z2$ yauopy Jod "BAY QLA L1027
610°Z$ _ 69% 980°222 $ |zoze 0Ll L10zZ Aenuep jejo)
0S0°L1$ 05G% 0S0'/1$ Le ! 8Je}S O IO - 8,004
zLL'eLs €6€$ Ge0'eL$ 98l 9 5,004
059% 1z 059% Le L Buini pusdapuj pasiaedng
v62$ 6% 6L1v$ ey vl diysuelpiens) pazipisqng
vzes L$ 0€8'G$ 1822 oz aJe) diysuryy
¥86'L$ 85C$ ¥06'L¥$ o8l 9 SWoH dnol9
0$ 0% 0$ 0 0 | - [9A97 SWOH J9)s04
0$ 0$ 0 o 0 [e1oadg e Ja)so4
Zle'ls Lv$ 867'€/$ GGS'l 9% ale) 18)s04
Ll-Aenuep
pHUD 184 1800 Ae( 49d 31809 180D sAeqjo # ualpliyn jo # juswaseld 10 adAj

SIS07y SIB7Y SIeUIS]Y = USIpT)




*

sjuswied jual AiInp pue sunp sepnou ,

022'691% {910z aunp nuyy) Yuop ied "BAY GLA 9102
¥£2'602% ysuopy 1ed "BAy LA LL0Z
09°L$ 79% 616°061% 0862 6LL L10Z aunp jejo]
05 0% 0% 0 0o JelS JO IO - 5,00y
€Ly'6% 29es €9e'L¥$ Lel G - $,00Y
0v8% 8% 0r8$ oL | Duiar puedepu) pesinedng
629 0i1$ 6LL'v$ 0zZy vl diysueiprens pezipisgng
081$ 8% Gor'9% 9¢8 9¢ aJe) diysury
967'G$ 09Z$ 95 vS$ ol 0L SWoH dnol9
0% 0% 0% 0 0 | - 19A97 BWOH J8)so4
0% 0% 0% 0 0 [e1oadg aie) Je1so4
oy LS 9G6$ 895'//$ eLe'L €G aled J9)so
: . JL-sunp
617'991$ {910z Aepy nayy) yuopy Jad "BAy QLA 9102
169'802% yjuopy Jad "BAY QLA L102
20148 09% vez'i6lL$ Z61¢ 4% 2102 Aepy jejoy
0$ 0% 0% 0 0 91€)S JO INO - 8,00y
192'6% z9¢c$ gee'ors 8cl G 5,004
0% 0% 0% 0 0 BuIn puadepu| pesiaedng
¥629$ 6$ 6LL'V$ ey vl diysueipiens) pezipisqns
zecs L$ 967'9$ 898 8¢ aiep diysury
628'9% 69C$ 108 L e L SwioH dnoig
0% 0% 0% 0 0 L - |9A87 8WOH 18)804
0% 0$ 0% 0 0 eroads a1 Jsiso4
L6v'L$ GG$ G8¥'98% 78G'L 86 aJeQ 18)so4
Li-Aejn
901L'ZL1$ (9102 1udy nuyy) yyuo tad “BAy QLA 9102
290°c1e$ Yuopy 1ad "BAy QLA L10Z
206°L$ 99% 90¥°502$ clie 801 2102 IHdy jejo)
050'9$ 065$ 050'9% Ll L 8}€}S JO INO - 8,004
985113 98¢$ 826'/G$ 0§l G } 8,00Y
0S¥$ Si$ 0Sv$ 0e b buin puadapu) pesiaiedng
v6C$ 0l$ 6LL'VS oz 143 diysueipiens pazipisgng
€zes 8% LLY'9% 628 62 a1e) diysuiy
025°,% Rerds 0Zl's¥$ 08l 9 BUWoH dnols
0% 0% 0% 0 0 | - [9A97 SWOH J8yso4
0$ 0% 0% 0 0 [e10ads 81D 191s0
0r9'L$ At 89z'68$ C6h L 4 aleD 181804
Li-judy
pliuD dag 3s0n  Aeq usd 1500 180D sAeqq o # USIpiuD 0 # juswaseld 1o adAy

SIS07y SIeTy SIEUIS]Y ~ USIPIT)




109'8V5C$

1oz e300

081 /9¢¢ -910¢ Wolj Janokiten
L2h' 182 z$ 180png /102
ErLYOres 1500 £10Z poosloid
u jusl ydag sapnjoul
G0£‘89L$ (9102 3snBny nayy) yyuoy sad “BAy QLA 9107
Sv€£°002% yyuopy Jad "BAY QLA L10Z
9L9'L$ 55$ Ly6'CL1LS [44 %> L0} £10zZ 3snbny |ejoy
0% ¢ 0$ 10 0 B 9JB)S JO INO - 5,00y
652'8% cLES 96Z'L¥$ LLL S s.00Y
Lvl$ Vs Lyl Le b Buiaiy pusdspu] pasiniedng
60€$ 0L$ BLEYS vEv S diysuelpseng pazipisqng
Gezs 8¢ 000'8$ €20} e sseQ diysury
16€'G$ ASTAS lzZler$ 891 |8 swoH dnoi9
0% 0% |03 0 |0 | - [9A97 BWOH J8)s0+
o\ww - ] 0% Oa,m ) 0 - 0 _m_omaw 2le]) Is8}s0+4
129'1% 96% 8G¥'GL$ Gge't Gt ale) J8jso4
Li-isnBny
: — . | ' a4 IsnBny sepnpoul ,
Lv¥'99L$ (9102 Ainr nawy) yyuopy aod "BAY (LA 9102
652'v07$ yjuolp 4ad "BAY QLA £10Z
Pr8'Ls 19% riv's6L$ S0C¢ 201 L1102 Ainp jejo g
0$ 0% 0% 0 0 8]e1S 10 1IN0 - 5,004
ce6v'LLS PA%S €9v'/G$ SS1 G S, 004
7G8% 87% ¥53% L€ L BuiaIg puadopu) pasiatedng
12¢$ H$ LS'Y$ vey 7l diysueipJeng) pazipisqng
£ze$ A 161°1% L0l Ge aue) diysury
8€T'L$ 16T$ §99'05$ A4 L - swoH dnoin
0% 0% 0$ 0 0 | - [9A97] BWOH Js)so4
0$ 0% 0% 0 0 [eroadg ey Jsjso4
€89'1$ Gs$ r90'v.$ Zre’l 144 aieJ Je}so4
Li-fnp
DHUD J8d 180D | Aeq 1ed 1809 3509 sAeQ jo # uaipiiyo 1o # usWaNeld J0 adA L

S0y BIE7y SIEUISIY ~ UsIpg




69V $ 910z 3dag ybnouy sjso jejo
LOL'vE1L$ £10z 3dag niy) sjso) pajewisy jejo

AR A3 pejewnss - jequisideg
9c9'88 ... oozgs 1snbny
AT RAR I g T 0S8.'%% L , Ainp:
0.0'9L$ G/1'9$ : sunp
oStz | - 08L'%$ . , Kel
006'71$ 069'9% ludy
og9's2s e ose'cis . Yole
060°cl$ , L¥0'6% Arenige -
0€6'0L$ R ; 8/1'8% - Arenuep

E:o.s_ Aq s3s09

"UlIN|o2 sjUsWWOY Ul 8)ep @oIA1es B Ylim 9)ep-o} pled s|jiq uo paseq si Junoj .
"sjus||D pejesljdnpun uo paseq sl juno) ,

6€9 . 9L0'LZLS | }snbny ybnoays €303 910z . 0L ~ 910z Isnbny - 1y

098  ZG6'vZL$ | IsnBnyybnoiy e3oy L0z €01 . Llozisnbny - |1y
0 0% ” 210z isnbny 0 ou| ‘@snoH eje
Ll se8tes | L10z3isnbny - ¢ - USWOAA Jo spually
el G10'16$ /102 snbny Ll g9y - usneH adoH
- 8ZL'r$ o .. L102Z3snbny | $9OIAI9S [e[00g UeiayinT

0$ m 210z isnbny 0 Aianooey Joqie] nep

¥68°'/6$

/102 }snbny 8 Alunwwon ueunye |

B - i ——

dsH - fiunon uosiayer
4480 vYaov/xolaq




Wl 1149 74174 LS £ 102 U M p P CGOTISIT I98HECT £ 08 TN F TN YOI JUBICT S Pl )l ARAOTUE | § SHEPUH YOS ORI fPI0 | €18 FOT Y\ OYPUUSL Y SIS 71T

000'S Jnoy|tad |0G-62 Jnoy|Jsed SaleA sooIneS Bulues) Ul Ngz S0€| L1
000'c Inoy|Jad lwses/5z-61|  Inoyluad selBA Jojeudimpul Znig esog ney yoc|-L1L
JaquinN

3]
2102 9102 1@bre | 801Be s dapinoid Joenu0D

|
(2102/2/01) S}oesjuo) Japiroid L1102

RIS



LL0Z/S/0L 9 4o i efeyg (pasesomny) mejney sdng-pieog MuUnoo-JsiT JoBRUOD B LOZ\SIUSWEBIBY PUE SJOBHUOD [LOZ\UONRHSIUIWPY\'M
0z6'L O/AIQ# yuouwiliad {00709} yuowisad (0009} sSnoueA diysueiprens OT1 's9dinleg poddng s@isuud czil-91
o 1ZV'ey %00 yiuow |1ad | 19°GeG'e yuow Jad | 196eG'e pIuo 2J80 1V PHUD $99IA19S AJJUNWIWIOY [N JO [BRASOH URIpiy) Bap AJ800g S91AI8S S ualpiin yZ1L1-91
©096'LZ | IO/AIG# | wuowlisd 00088’ yuow|sed |00'0g8'} PIUD o180 191504 RiusybuoAoiL g Assed| ¢z gy
B/u IO/AIG# preoyipow|sad [0 N peoyipow iad D9 N aa UOEOUIPO SWOH 0T 'suyD Aq Ausdied zzL|-8L
002 %00 anoy|ed | 1870z | nou|ed |10z e/u sjeudion] Ined "oyoewed 1z1|-81
TSv'9- %00 Japenbiisd (00°¢L9') Japenb ted (00°€L9'L /U panjeoal safiieyy soedsg (INTY) 2'v'83D 0zZ1|-81
o0z %00 dmlsad [g2°0 dmsed 520 SE $opIY UORANN qed umoig|  gyy -g|
00v'1L %00 Jnoylled |go'sz Jnoy|sed |00'sz e/u Jejeldiaul sjue}nsuo) bujules] [enbuijig 8L1l-g1
000'22 %0'0 ppeoyipow |ied |00°000°2Z  pneduipow 00°000'/2 PIYD SUOHEOHIPOYY SWOH subisaqg Buia yuspuadepu] Aemsbpug-qig L1181
000'vZ %00 anoy[isd |00°0p1 inoy|sed |00°0%L HI esiBojouaks 4 Qud usy “Aeuieg oLL|-84
006'c} %00 kep|ied |00°0G1 Kep|isd |00 051 pIUD eudsey PO (endssy) SwioH dnoi9 sbuiuuibeg SLL|-81
00009 %00 Kep|ied |40 L£T Aep|ied |p0°LET pIYD 218D IV PIUD 8WoH dnoi sbuiuuibeg GLL -8t
00€'z %00 noy|sed [1Z7peL noysed | Lz vEL HIA {ea1Bojoyohs awt “lleysiep ‘ssjeg viL|-8l
0se i0/AIG# Kepliad (0005 Kepited (0005 SnolieA oydsay UISUODSIAN JSEBUINOG AJ8100S Wishny cLLl-gL
00005 %0°0 Aeplsad [00°GZL'L Aepised [Q0°GLL L HIN seolnleg ueneduy) ‘oU] 'ee) Yj[esH eioiny ZiLi-81
000°'s %0°0 ssassy Jad |00°052'L ssoassy |Jad 0005zt sjusied ss9ssY |eolBojoyohsd '0'S Iejue) ssau|dpn 9 saldesay] paiddy LiLi-etl’
085°¢S %00 Aeplied |G9/6 kep|sad |68 /6 PIUD eydsay |)dsay - seoinies pesed AW NNV, gy |-g)
0005 | iO/AIQ# Kep|ied [05v51-58'26 Aep|sed |05'751-58 L6 HIN Adesayioyoshd 500 uolbay Mr - sedInBs pased AW ANV o)1 [-g)
00002 %00 Aep|ied 6816 Aep|ed 5926 PHIYD ejidsay Hg - s9oInlag paseg Allued NNV 601 |-8}
000°09 %00 inoy|Jed |ge 98 inoy|Jed |Ge 98 HIA [eoibojoyohsy $90IAIeG Buljasunod paijiy 801 1-81
055} 1 %00 usalas|sad |ogge usais|1ad | oG ge snolea susaIng auln ABojooixo eisly 01181
261G %0°0 tuowlsed |00°L 4Gy yuow!ied |00°LbG'y Inpy 2180 1Y HNpY aoejd 2uo ON- (esnoH oBply auld) O @ieD uyesH Auy|  9oLi-8L
T en %00 noyliad {00°06 noylied 0008 g/u Adeseyjoyohsy 071 ‘dnoig ssaujjlaph peteligy GoLi-g1
6571 %00 preoyipowliad [00°6vS'yL  deoypowied |00'6vS vl snouea UoReRIPOI SO (ss200V Jn0qY [1y) Jojens|3 ss900y|  pOL|-8L
000'Zy iO/AIQ# | wuowied |000S-00GE yuow|sad |0008-005€ [IND 2180 1y JInpY pade|d suo ON - ABAA MOIIIA - "2U] ‘saliliay| €1°€0L|-81
- 000'zy I0/NIQ# yuow 1ed | 0005-005¢ yuow | ted | 0005-00S€ IND 8180 Y HNPY H4V Inujepn - ou| ‘s ZL'e0L|-8L
- 000'zy IO/NIQ# | yuowsed |000S-006€E yiuow Jad |000S-00SE IND IED Iy Ynpy paoe|d 8uo ON - {lelL Jequi - ou] ‘sal LLE0L -8
0002y %00 yuow | sed [00'005'€ yuow 1ed [00°005'e D a1Bg Iy Inpy 44490 auojs buiddals - ouj “sal 0L'€0L|-81
LY LY %0°0 Jnoy|sed |0v'0Z Inoy|ued |0v'0Z ND 8180 BWoH aAmpoddng Butsn JoN - DHS - "ou] ‘s 6°€0L|-81
000'vS %00 yiuow|1ad |00°00 'y Wuow |Jed | 00005y IO 818 )V NPy pa2e|d aUO ou - 4HgD seuoY Apeys - ou] ‘sal 8'c0L|-81
008'0Y %00 wuow | 1ad |00'00F'E yuow|1ad |00°00%'€ IND 2180 )Y HNpY paoe|d U0 OU - |4y POOMIBARY - OU] ‘S8l 1'€01|-81
9G.'%S %00 tuow|sed {00°€9G'y wuow 1ed |00°€9S 'Y IND 2120 v HNpY H4V 818W0D 18N207 - “duj sal G'€0l |81
000'GC %00 Kep|1ad {00004 Kep|iad |00°00} HI oydsay HINT 9)dS8Y HINT - ou] ‘S8 v'€ol|-8)
000'7S i0/AIC# Uuow 1ed | 0005-005€ yuow|sad | 000$-00G€ o 2180 JY INPY paoe|d 8Uo ON - 4YFD 8811 GeID - U] 'sal €€0l |81
0002y | IO/AIG# | wuow sed |000S-00SE yuow Jad |0005-005€ IND 218D IV 1Py UET JAA0ID - "Ouj sal Z'€01i-81
- osv'zy %0°0 tuow|18d |00'0pS'E iuow|18d |00°0¥G'E IO a1e0 IV WPy Sjusliedy - "ouf 'ssl L'E0L -8l
000'071 %0°0 Jnoy|sed |00°001 Jnoy|.sed |00°001 PIYD Buljesunog UISUOOSIM §0 vEY z01i-81
e/u %00 io; iad (00 0v) Jnoylted |00l I_>_ oLyeIYDASd (an smey peqoy 8q 0y pesn) o1 - 1dV 101 1-81
 000's %00 noy|Jed |00'gZ anoyliad |00°gZ pIYD SIS BuiAr Aleg 071 "eduspuadspuj o ¥ ooLl-gL
8102 2102 1obie) ooinIeg 19pinoId 1equInN
joenuUOD
_ ] . |
(Z102/50/01) S}OB13UOD J8pIAOId 8L0T

—<\ 3%




LL0Z/5/GL 9 o Z ofiey (panesoiny) mainoy sdns-pieog AQUNCH-s[7 198IIU0T LOZ\SISOWSRIBY PUE S)OBHUCD [ [GZ\UO[IRAS[UIWPYVM
e/u 1O/ Q# junjiad |09 N0 ] wunlied |59 N aa Adeseu ) g-g "OUl "§35IN0SsY qeysy - ouj "ASUSDY UGHEIIGeUSY plislussis) coll-gt
B/u %00 1Y 71 1ded loopy I 71 ued (oL aa 18410 £-g "OU[ "S80IN635Y qeyaY - ou] AoUsBY UOHENIqeYaY pjjeussio €911-81
000'L1 %0°0 nun| sadiog /g nun| sed|0g/z pIyD Juyasuno) ¥983U89)-0 1 JO WO O SIY} N0 9)0iqg) DT 's8oinag Ajjunwiwo) esssusg 291/-81
B/u 1QINIQH# ¥osyoilad |snopea »oeyoilad |snouen aa Jusby jeosi4 211 _m._n:\_Q ~BURRsue fnd 1911-81
e/u %E 12 Aegi+ed 100°691 Aeqised [00'9et Yaov asnoy Aemye . ~ AI9n0dsy Ul UBWOAA JO Spualid] 0911-8}
e/u %00 Jnoylied 0002 anoylled (00702 SNOUEBA ety aoia1eg [euoibay §00 uoibad MUl - “OT1 18U Bujjesunoy) sUojjepuno] BGLl-gt
000's8 %00 Aepluad {00616 Aeplied |00°G¥6 HIA s80|AteS JusRedy| $901A19G uBWINK AjUNo) 287 Np pucH 8G1|-8}
Ge1'98l %070 - feswled gty esw|1ad g1 % pi3 Welb01g UORINN AHspI3 Buisied sjied IS1]-8L
E/u 10/AIC# JnoH|Jed {0G'62-56'GZ noH/Jad |06°62-56'5Z a3s siis Buiar Areg uonoeIRlU| PNoA Ajjute 4 9G11-81
000'Z9 %0°0 wuow 1ad |00 S’z wuow ied |00 F¥S'T PIYD 2180 WY PIND pavejd suo ou - syIopN Ajiwe GG1|-8L
e/ 0/AIC# Inoy sed |GE'98-55°66 Jnoy|led |Ge'98-6G'5G HIN JeoiBojotohsd DASd - 0088y $80In0saY Ajlwe vGlL|-8lL
L9z %00 Arepiied (6€°€0Z Areplied |6e°€0Z PiuD 2180 ¥ PIND 191ue) 8,UBIpiiyD pue AllWE £51|-81
B/u IO/AIQ# eyujlad 1800 [enjoR gullad [1s00 |enjoe e/u weiboid dy3HiT 1A jeasyy ~(niyy-ssed) ouj .w.wo_Emw ABisug 251181
ovs %00 Aepited (00 gp Aepliad [po G aa oren 191804 (eiio|9) auey LEwon_ splemp LSL-81
B/u %0°0 uorssas ted {00192 uolssas|ied |0019. PIIYOD sydsay dweo sswwns (s)dsey) s|eeg Je)seq 0S1|-8L
B/u IO/AIC# yiuow |1ad [091$-08% Yuow Jad 1091$-08% snouen ue|plens diop (Ueipieng dioD) sjesg isjseq 6tL|-81
00¢ %00 yiuow [Jad {00'gL yuow [Jad {00'g/ snouep dnoso poddng NUOY mcmtm.m 8¥11-81
B/u %0°0 Jnoysed {000z Jnoyled {000z} PIYD feaiBojoyofsd $801MI9S [EOIBOIOUIAS  Alllue ] eqp J8JAd 1107 Id Lrl|-8L
892G'/S o.\oo.o Aepjied [00°9/¢ Aepliad [009/E Inpy aleD IV ¥Npy YlfesH jesoineyag maiAea|d Bqp safjijioe [edipsiy Ajuno] ebpoQ ov1|-8l
/U %00 feplied [pg7peL Aepliad |pGpel pIYD 1801 8In2eg-UoN »-dSH Aunoy ebpog S¥Li-8lL
000'01 %00 anoy|sed |1z pel anoypad [1zveL HIA ouenyohsd din "usipber "eneq vr1i-gl
000'0} %00 inoy|d |1z peL anoylisd |1z el HIA spelofsd QN Mpu; ered cri|-8l
089'8 %0°0 ‘wey|ied 100°089'8 wayjsed | 00°089'9 Py UOREOHIPOW SUWoH ouj "Aueduiog 598@ pue saus4 Ajunog steq Zri|-8l
g/u %6'C dnoy|sed {006/ L Jnoyised {00661 HIA uogusjaq Brew3 «SHQ Aunog sueq ivi|-8L
e/u IO/AIQ# oy |sed [g/1-60} anoyliad |g/1-60) HIA Keiry sointeg jeuoibay g0 PSISHST UM BUNORIIUu0D JOU-UOIBEY JAY[ U] 181087 buj[asunod spe0.issoid orL|-g1
0052 %070 inoy|4ad {00706 unoy|sed [00°06 piIuD Buyjssunon "ou] Jeuay bujjasuno) speoissoi) 6EL|-81L
6G.'9/ %00 yuow iad {00°000'2 yiuow| sed {00°000'L HIN a1y sjEwIRlY JinpY D71 'sebpiig BuissoiD gell-al
e/u %00 Jnoyliad {o0'eg Jnoylied |90'eg eju Adessyjoyoksd seojueg Buyesuno) suo)siaulo) /E11-81L
e/u %00 inoy|J4ad [958zl unoyliad {95871 SNOLIBA  {feuly aojnieg jeuoiBay §00 Buisn Jou - uofBsY MAMT - DUJjBSUN0) SUCHISUUDD 9€1Li-8l
000'e¥ i0/AIQ# inoy|ied o/ 1-0rL Jnoyliad |021-0vL Snojen Buyesunoo Buljasundyd suopoRUUcy GelLl-81
80Z'¥2S i0/AIQ# Ywow |1ed |9KEr-0067 yow ued | 9veH-0062 pIuD 218D IV PIYD $90IN0s8Y 8JBY AYUNILIO) yeL|-81L
Z9e'y 0/AIa# Aep|iad |6'8Z1-00L feplied 16'9z1-001 Py a1e) aydsay $89IN0s8y 81e AIUNWLC)H PEL-8L
e/U 0/AIQ# Jnoylsed | Le 2€1-001 Jnoyjuad | L 2€1-001 PIUD  feuy eojiss [euoiBey SO0 UOIBSY M - "OU] "SUIBIBoId 81e) AN | cpyl-g)
000'05 i0/AIG# | wuowsad [gogi-ogh yiuow|sed |0051-05F G) tilesH [epue Ouj 'swieibold 8ieD Ajuniiio) ZEL|-81
0T6'y %0°0 Yuow lied |00 Z61- Yuow sed 100261~ ey OAM Uy OaMm UoRie0d UoROY Ajiunuiuioy LEL|-81
E/U %00 ~fep|1ad [00z0w , fepliad |00°Z0Y nnpy 21D Iy INPY (1 ¥ 8183 HOJWOD ocLi-glL
e/u %00 ypuow [1ad 100001 "1 Yuow lJad 10000} "} HIA s901A9G Juafiedul UosAd Jusiiedul pesN "ou| "eBNNEM [BHSOH S AJBY 1S BIqUINOD 628
005} %00 Jnoulied {00 09t 1moy|sed |00°081 pIYD leojBojouohs $918208SY ABOJOUSASH 1eoiuld 8zL|-8)
0¥0'v1 i0/AICH nunjsed |59 nunlied [g2°9 SIite) aydsey Ul BIED AJEID 1ZL]-81
7656 %0°0 Jnoy|sed fgg'gl noylued gggl pIZ Jebauep a)ig uop OOHRIEAN JO ANID 9z1-81
8102 1102 yobie 091198 18PINOI MMHMM

. |
\LL02/S0/01) sioenuod J8pinoid gLoe




2L02/5/01 9 Jo ¢ abeyq (ponesony) moiney sdng-pieog MUNOY-ISIT PRAUCY §LOZ\SIIEWSSIBY PUE SIORUOT [ LOZ\UORERSIUIUPY M
G6Z'e- %00 punjsed 16502 yunied 166702 PIYD uoneniaiul Aues $90IAI9S UBWINY AJUNOY SoMOjUE 661|-81
0560'2¢€ HYoo.o inoy|Jad om.wmr. inoy|sed |9g°gzL T kewry soinIag euoiBay SO0 uoIbay MYT - $81810088Y dlijelydAsd UoSIpey 961|-81

e/u %00 inoy|sed [000LL noylusd |00ty Adesayy, Ajie 4 [euonoun uoIBaY MWMIT - S8DIAIBS [BI00S BB /611-81
000'G. %0°0 tesh|sad (000006 1esh|sed |00°000°GL sSnokLeA Adeiey ) Ajiue4 jeuonouny $3VINIBG [BID0G UBlBYINT 961|-81
000'6Z4 | IO/AIQ# | wuow|sed |£09e-0L'65Z2| Wuow|ied |£09€-0.'6522]  PHUD a1ed v PIUD SOOINISS [BI00G UBISYINT 961 |-81
000's2 I0/AIQ# Aepliad |9y €162 1L keplied (oy'€/L-GZ 1/ snoiea s|seuany/eyidsay SOVIAISG [BI00S UBiayinT 961|-81

000'9 %00 noy|1ed |00°62) noy|sad |00°gz ) PIYD leo1BojoyoAsd Roeil "epayony 561|-81
16€' Ly %00 Aepliad |v0'1E2 fep|sed |p0LET PHYD 2480 Y PIYO 071 sAog 10} SWOH MSIABLOT y61|-gl
000'c %00 uoisses|1ed |00 06¢ uoissas |1ad |00 06€ pPIYD soojneg Adesay ouj 'sisplisep c61l-g1

00811 %00 way 42d |00°00G' | wsy 4ed |00°00G" L1 ellle} 218D YV PIND 9S4 Syuie] z61|-8l

e/u iO/INIQ# duy|sed |snouea duijiad [snouena SnoLEeA uonepodsuel | saul sng s,aubine 1611-81

009 %00 Guow |15d 0005 yuow |1ad [0o-0§ i3 Juey UoRUINN 40 RUD TSINN e 061|-81
002'91 %00 ywow |1ed 00 0ge‘} yuow sad |00°0GE"} Ino 1dy pasinedng BUIAIT juspuadapul SIiiNl &xeT 681 |-81
000G %00 anoyjued |00°061 Jnoy|Jed 100061 piyo sleaddy Sd0 Joe)UOoD Sy} Uo Buposyd jualg - 977 90O MeT yosiieT] 881 |-81
000°'se %00 noy|sad [00°2€ InoylJed 100°2€ piyo 2l eydsay Jeak ayj ul Joje| puss [im dwied Jswwng - exe pe’ £811-81

e/u IO/AIQ# Jnoyluad 1011-/¢€ 59._ sad [QbL-/€ HIN Keary mo_iwm reuoibey §00 uoibay] T - @eT e 9g8L|-g1
0008} 10/NIQ# yuow | sed {00°008" | Yuow jed |00°006'L PIIYD a1eQ 9104 MU MaUJJelN pue Wiy G8li-81

Geg'L %00 yeamisad [00°05L yeomsed |00°0SL PIYD alep Reg ‘0711 8%ejed s.piv ¥8Li-81

Bju IO/NIG# yo8yo|Jad [snouea )oeyolied |snouea aa ey [eosid S@OIAISG JuSBY [edsid DO c€g8Li-gl
000'S1 I0/NIC# yyuows|ed | 00ZL-0SY yuow 1ad | 00ZL-0GY piys YleaH [elusiy 0711 48jua) Juswiess | pue JUBWISSassY aliuaanp 281181
09/'8¢ %00 yuow|sed [00°0€2'E Yiuow sad (00°0€Z'e HIA ale) v Inpy v SWOoH & jsnr 181i-81
000'0¢ %0°0 fkep|iad |00°0GE feplied |00°05¢ Inpy SISUD HINT uyesH [ejusIN Asuinor 08li-8l
000'0¥% 1O/AIO# inoyjied [gog anoy|sed (000 yels wesbold Buures | 0771 'Buijnsuod suojsuyor 6.11-g1

B 000'ZL iO/AIQ# S,o; sod |00 0vL inoy|ied |00°0FL SNOUEA oueIoAsd alN 'snosepy 'y Aalyer 8/11-81

0o¢ %00 yow j1ad |00'gz yow |1ad |00'sz pIg ey uonmnN $0 AuQ "uosiayer /21181
000'Cy %00 yluow|sad |0000%' v ypuow| 1ad|00°00% ¥ E! 3123 31V UNPY dON 8leD Alowsy uosiager 9/1|-84
159'9/~ %00 1eahk|iad |00°169'9/- seah|1ad |00'169'97- e/u sebley) sordg daQ uileay AQjunod uosiager G181

e/u 10/AIQ# e/uliad [1s00 emoe e/uliad [1s00 [enjoe HIN BulsIny dso 1daqg yileeH Aiuno) uosisysr G/1]-g1

B/u i0/AIQ# inoy|ied |G/ €26/ 12 noylied (6/°€2-6/°1Z Inpy spoddng awoH-uf {3noAng sssinN AUNoQ) UISUOISIAA JO BIBDY}ESH WIS v/Ll-g1

B/u iO/AIQ# | ssosse|iad |G62-G6 ssasse|Jsad |G62-G6 nnpy JUBWssassy IMO “ou[ Joedw] elLl-81

““““ 5z9'01 %00 Kep|sad | 0052} kep1ed |00'5Z1 PiIUD s1e0 oydsey eydsay - ouj 'ueneH RdoH|  z[-g)
000°0LE | IO/AIQ# | ywow sad | 21/1-009Z uow|sed |/} 25-0092 PIYD 21ED 1Y PIIUD U 'USABH INRAOH| Z/ 1 |-}

e/u %0T} Aep|ied |5/1-5z) Aepliad |G/1-6Z} vaov asnoy Aemye - 4480 ueneH sdoH L21|-81

005'Z %00 yun|sed oG /¢ wunliad |og 2e PIUD uoyESlIPOy SWoH OT1 "sedlnies Aisnoosy pue Buljasunod 3eaid AsUoH| o, [-gy
g/u 10/NIC# wajjsed (0% N wayjued (D8N piyo spiy enldepy pajiun yijesH swoH 691 |-81
e/u I0/AIQ# inoy|red [06v2$-618 Inoy| 18d[05 725618 SNOLEA JHS % 0d SV s|8buy BunIsiA Bap 077 ‘S80I B0UBISISSY 81D SLIOH 8oL|-8l
000'Z i0/AIa# anoy|sed [01z-001 inoy|sed |01z-001 PIUD Adesey | O 4eyus) Bujesunod Alilied syesH BullesH| g |-gy
oommm %00 uorsses|Jod [£8/9 uorsses|Jjad |€8/9 pHYD Adessy ) oisnpy 0711 "seluoliie Buliea 991|-81

e/u %00 inoy|1ad [90°051 noy|sed |90°051 HIN 10120(1 4EIS AN ‘19N ‘HebbeH 591l-g1

099'v9 %00 Aep|iad 100°0€S Aeplied 100°0€S i} 818D YV PIND SESUBMIY JO Y980 9/q/P DT "SI8JUSD UOHEIIIqeH v9L|-81
Jaquinn
8102 2102 jebiey aoiAIeg Jopinoid 1Pe1U05
k
1Z102/50/01) S}9€IUOD JSpIAoid 8102




LL0Z/5/0L 9 Jo p abfey (penesony) mofney sdns-pigog Munon-3sr7 19e4Ju0y §1.07\SIVeWee By PUE SIOBHUCD [ LOT\UCRESSIUIWP YR

000'c F0/NQ# | enwpnoy|ied [wges/5z-61 | elwunoy|iad |RUGEG/SZ-6L|  SeUBA EEEILIET ZNIG BSOS ey GeZ|-81
89¢'8¢ %0°0 Yuow|4ad |00'66L'c Yluow 1ad 100°661'¢ D 2180 )i INPY HJY $810y Ulody - Jajlap ydiey veZi-8l
002'2 %00 moyliad |00 0¥ inoylied |00 0y sjusied s8N pesinledng weiboid 19edwi APUnwiwoD/dnols) seojaeg _mco_mmmc,ogn_ ceel-s1
266'6 0/NIQ# fep|ied |G1°Z61 fep|ied 151261 ynpy Q1B IV INPY - "ouj 'swiesAg BUIAT 8ARONPOId zezi-8l
000's %00 anoylied |00°0g anoy|sed |00 08 Auep|g Buues | uo Buiddals . sa|fejells yjeeH aajusnald Lez|-8l
0€e'v8 %00 feplsd |y0° LT , Aeplied |70°LET PIuO 210 1Y PIIYO ) "0U] 'SeANEBWISYY BAIISOH 0€Z|-8l
B/ %00 Rep|ied 007061 Replizd [00°08) piyo uopusieq AP . #9180 uojusia 09 abeliod 62Z|-81
008°051 %00 anoy|1ed {0000z noy| edlog'00z | piuo  sougsissy [ebe _ . Kuey wnid|  gzz|8l
zZv'v9 %0°0 yuowfied {05'89¢'s -Yuow|Jed |05°89€'s HIN Buin uspuadapul [BUSPISSY AS[EA BUld 122|981
ey %00 iuow led |19°Geg'e yuow |iad |19°6EG'E PIYD 812 IV PIYD QUIA pue Iejiid 92Z|-8}
009 iO/AIQ# Jeahised 100009 teaklied |00 009 21BMIJOS SUeIL LLILE/G-91/1/9 SuBI) Dd 6z7|-8l
0/6'2E€1L | iO/AIQ# Keplied |00°68) fepiied |00 681 PIYD 2480 1 PIUD D1 Ajunod o0y Jo 8WOH dnolo sABMUTed vzz|-g1
B/u %00 ssasse|Jad 0,0.00@ ssasse|lad 00°008 PHYD Jjusuissassy J81ua) mc__QMCDOO m>N>>£“_m& £ce|-8l
00¢ %00 noypied 10021 noyjusd {007/ L aa/ass SIS BulAr Aeg ‘ uoBered czel-gl
000'% O/AIGH# dl1ed [00vT-5L¢) . dwjued loovz-sLel | QQ/d3s uopepodsue. | _ UoBEIEd| T erzlgy
00L'65 | IO/AICH# inop |1ed |60°Lp-GL anopsed |60°Lp-G L aaq/a3s OHs/eldsay , . uobesed zez|-8l
000'09 %0°0 Jteshiiad 100°000'09 - Jteakliad |00°000'09 s)Inpy uopusAIBuj Vavd Lez|-8l
000'69 i0/AIQ# Inoylied iz, /18-85 49 inoyjsed |2/°/9-8G%9 | snouen Bufesunog uoiBeY WAr-sedInisS Allwe ] Uolo 0zZ|-81
000's9 %00 inoy|sad 0002 anoylued |00 0L snopen Bujjesunog seoIAes AjllieJ UOUO 61Z|-81
00Z'Sh %00 nop |18d 0002 anop{sad {0002 Q3s  |feuvy somsg [euojBey §00 uoibed AT - UNESH [ejusiN uobeio gLz|-al
- 000G i0/AIa# noH|sed |15 2407 anoplied [1574-0z SO0 Jsuikoidws sy ‘ uoiboy MYT - Ul "SeRiunpIodds £1z]-81
0v9'8l- %00 Yuowied 10¢'€6G"L tuowiied | 0g'€GG L B/u aordg OQM - "ou| 'ssiunpoddo Lizg|8l
96E'Vi L %0°0 J1eak|iod |00°'96€' L1 seshlied (00968 vLL ) NIOP 1oalorg “ou] "seniunuoddo 112)-81
058'2L [O/AIO# Yuow | 19d {091-08 tuow|Jad |0gL-0g snopen ueipieng dio) “ou] "safjiunpoddg g1zi-g1
078'9S 0/AI1Q# Aep|iad |/6°8/¢-562 Replied |16°81¢-5€2 PIYO apdsey/a1eD 1Y PIIYD Jud BUIL AST 90MOUIoU000 GLzZ!-8l
000'0Z %0°0 Aeplied|/6'8/¢ Aeplisd | /6'8/¢ HIA 8180 IV PIYD . dON - ebessed jsemypoN viz|-81
005'68 0/AIO# Aeplued |/6°8.6-G5 261 Aeplied |16°9/€-G5° 464  PHUD 81D 1Y PIYD : 18JUB JUSDSIIOPY SIUON £12|-81
e/u I0/AIQ# wayl|sad |99 N ' wayljiad |59 n PHYD sply eAndepy Ajigopy g Buijesg [eudfieN zZizi-gl
Be/u %00 noylied |05 sz noyliad (g5 6z 3$09 Aelry eoinsg [euoiBey §00 Buisn jou uoiBay MUr - eUSSINEM [INVN L1el-g1
Bg/u %00 Jnoylied |0g'gZ Jnoyjued |pg sz 4SD/SHD Woddng soaq BUSHNEAA IINVN oLzl-8L
000's %0°0 uoissas|ied |gogz uorsses|iad [0o'gz PIYD Adesuy D71 AUNoD BYSSNNEAA JO 5901M9S AdEIaU L OISnpy 60z|-81
e/u %00 anoylred [gogol anoy|ad o‘oAmow HIA Kelry 9o|alsg [euoIBoy §O0) uofbay MHF 011 'UQ BUIRO Q0z[-81
000'0¥ 0/AIQ# Aeplied |G/1-06z Aep|ied |G/1-052 npy 20198 S9Y YAOY "ouf "esnoH B £02|-81
050'/¢ %00 Jnoy |1ed {00°GL Jnoylied {006/ HIN NY pejoenuo) oul 8ley sUoH sulspy 907|-81
e/u (0/AIQ# gujied |09 N e/upad 199 N HIA dsoH 9Asd d} ‘oup 'feyidsoH Jeyiaiy S0c|-8l
e/u %00 unoylsad {00001 Jnoyilad 100°001 snouea VO D771 18jUad meT SAlBIOGR[[0D » UOHBIPSN $0Z!|-81
000'8 %00 |- ddL|sed 00056 yd1]4ed [00°056 pliuo uoneIPeN S0 -/l 0} PRYOIMS - Liad ‘seAepy €0Z|-8L
e/u %00 Aepliad 006l fep| Jad|g06LE unpy DD X0BA YAOY  pU9L) ssorjdal - DU] 'eIBJU}ESH UOZLIOH) OU[ '$e2|AI8S ABn0oay JO4ie ] NERN Z0Z1-91
000'ey %00 -4eeh1ad 100°000'cH teofied (00°000'sy HIN BuiploH Juswaoe|d (2180 17 MeInes|D) SouBIY UlESH AlunoD ysiepy L0Z|-81
881'cy %00 yiuow |Jed 100665 yuow Jed |00'665'€ HIN 2183 Jy ‘ OT1 HAV 81D Asolepy 002i{-8L
810z L10T jobie) a01nI9g repinoid - lequinn
: J0BIIUOD
‘ _
(£102/50/01) s}oenjuo) 19pinoid gLoz




1102/5/0L g jo g afey (panesony) majaey sdng-pieog MUno3-1s[7 JoBHUOY B LOZ\SIUBWSSIBY PUE S]OERUOD [L0Z\UORLHSILILPY\:M
e/u %00 Aep|Jed {00 LEL Aeplied [Q0°LEL plIYD 19 9iN28G-UON 9180 I8}JoyS - S5 00 Uolbuysepn crzi-g1
e/u IO/NICQ# Aep|iad |snouea Aepliad snouea Hin $80IAJ8S Jusiedu) 2U] ‘ale) yjesH Aysieniun 2l2ci-81
989'C %00 uoissas|iad {00 EYE L uoisses|1od |00 ChE'L pIYD aydsey (sliosemy dwed) oup 'dwed 4oinyd psuln L.zl
0o0s'el %00 oy |Jad lgo°eg oy sad |90 HIA fewy soiAeg [euoiBey SO0 AluQ uosisper (UoIBaY pMYr) SO - 7 Tauiny 0/z]-81
00S'¢1 %0°0 Jnoy|sed 90°€s Jnoy|sed [90°eg HIN pIUD -7 sewiny 692/-81
1ge'ovl %S'€ fep|ied |00°598-29Zr7 fep|iod [00'G9s-29Zv2.  HIN a1eD sjeUIs]Y NPy 9)us) s1ed yyesH Aunod nesineadwal | 89z|-8l
SzZE'LLL %0°0 Aep|ied | 00°GOE Aep|ied |00°G0E pPIUD 180 WY PO "ou] "UBIPIIYD SMOLIOWWO 19z/|-81
000'6¢ i0/AIQ# Inoy|ied |¥z$-81$ inoy|ied |¥z$-81% snopeA OHS o771 'Bugeis oL 99z|-81
128y %00 yow |sed {19°GeL'E ypiow 1ed | Lg'geL'e pilyo 21eD 1Y PIYD 0717 $9dIMag JusLIlesl | SAUYL 59z |-81
000's %00 Aepliad 100°0LL Aepised |000L1 PIYD aydsay 077 'Jooyos uospieyolry ey ¥9Z|-81
000'0€ %00 inoysed |00'08L oy, 0008l PIYO | suoneniend jeoiBojouoksd Jeya) ABojoudhsd auyL]  ggz|-g)
00S %00 yuow|Jad {006y yuow|iad {po'st sjusled sse|) bupnusied spomiaN bBuniuared sy z9z!-81
000'9¢ %00 yiuow | 1ed 100°000°€ yiuow| Jad[00000'S ynpy IV HNPY dON - awoH Ajiwed Jnpy Jouely 8yl 19Z|-8}4
vOL %00 xoq|18d {0025 xoq| 49d|00°ZS PIYD Ajddns [ea1pai [erpads eui0)g Brug syl 09z|-8}
00%'22 %00 Jnoylied [ Lz vel noy|sed |1z veL HIN oueloAsd QW "Bileys Uoxey L 652|-81
000'08 %00 Aep|ied |00y Aep|sed |00°GLY vaov uoeoyXalaq aUEQ - X018Q P8 - DUl “UBLNfSL 652|-81
000's1 %Le Aep|ied |00°651 Aeplied |00°SHy vaov uorRaX0}RQ d¥V - X038(] P8Il - U] "UBLNIS L 9czl-gl
e/u %00 moyiied |LZyElL noyy Jad| Lz el HIN oljeIyoAsS Qud sljse IojAe] -s80in1aG oUjelYoASd Jojhe | /G62.-81
e/u IO/NIQ# moylied |06-6¢ inoy |sad |06-GY snolea Bunesdiau) SLIMS 96zi-g1
0ov'ze %00 Jnoylied | Lz velL Jnoy|ied [1Z'yelL HIN oujeryohsd UleeH [Blus|y g Juswiebeue ssalls 65zZi-gl
e/u iO/AIC# g/uied (D9 N g/ulied (98N HIN dsoH ofsd d| jendsoy uojybnoig vSZi-81
008 IO/NIC# inoyjsed |G¢ By Jnoy|ied |sg6p unpy uoisinadng P} "sedlAIag Buljinsuog g Buijdsunod uisig £6Z1-91
LY.'6S %00 pueoipowed | Ly iy '6e  pyeowpow |4ad | Ly b/ 6 snouen uoRESYIPOIN SWOH ‘ou ‘sisije1oadg awoy je Aeig 25¢|-8l
009 %00 yuow |Jed | 00°09 yuow | Jed |00°0G pi3 ey uonANN yaInyg s, MRS 1gzi-8l
- 0eT'S %00 feplsed |00'1€G Aeplied [00°1EG HIN dsoH ofsd dI fendsoy s,udasor 1g 062|-81
B/U iO/AIQ# Kep|itad (00001t Kep|sad [00°00L L SNoLieA saojnag Juspedul yiagezy3 i1g 6vZi-81
000'% %00 spw|ad |g/'L apw SlL Snotea uofjerlodsues | "OU[ “UISUOISIAA JO BR9|0) 18 avzi-gl
/U %00 fep| sod|00°80¢"L Aep|ad |00°80€ "} HIA seo|nseg Jusedyl [eydsoH ssuby 3 LvZ|-8)
B/U 10/AIO# enuliad (D9 N0 elied (990 HIA dsop oAsd di (Ilendsol sAtely 1S) 1M 10 @JedyjesH WSS ovz|-gl
05¢ %00 Hun|ed (0Z°05¢ junjed 10Z°0G¢ PIUD  [SwWssessy UORBOBIPOIN SUIC "ouj 'sjessy sf1e1008 g¥z|-8l
099'%S %00 yuow | Jed |00'65G Y yiuow|ied |00°66S Y HI 2180 Iy 0711 'BUIAIT painoes vrz|-8l
086’} %0°0 Aep|sad |00°5Y Aep| 18d;00°G¥ Py 8183 2)ydsay SUIOH 18}S0 |Pa0Iyog €ve|-81
vze'sel %00 Aep|ied |/6'8./¢ Aepied 1/68/¢ S99 2120 1Y PUUD Viuleg zvz|-el
000'€ 10/AICI# anoy Jed |Zp-6Z noylsed |Zp-GZ snolien OHS % Od aleD JeySblg eqp D77 @IEJ SWOH [ pUE § LyZl-81
e/u %00 Rep| 12d|00°G50"L fAep|19d |00'550') HIN dso oAsd di «+[E}IdSOH [elloWsy sI18boy ovzl-gl
/U %Q0°0 Jnoy|Jad {00°GOL anoy|iad 100°50} HIA Kewy soinuag jeuoibay SO0 RI-OIUID OHIEIYOAS SlINSaUEr vaq Ul ‘swelBoid Aunwiwog Asjiep %00y 6€2|-81
e/u %00 fea|iad |00 06 keq|sed {00 05E HIN uopezqelS SISO 808|d s12dIBH-AJUN0Y 300y 8cz|-81
000'v¢ %0°0 fep|iad |00 06¢ Aepied |00 06 PIYO 180 Anp 21noes «S890INIBS UBLINH QU0 %204 8gz|-81
2599y %00 Aiepjiad |$9°19¢ Ayep|ied |$9°L9¢ Inpy aled v Hnpy 071 HAY mainsary 1£2-81
e/u %00 Req|ied |/6'8/¢€ Aeqlied |/6'8.8 piiyo 21D 1Y PIND "oU[ ‘eplumey 9€Z|-81
JaquinN
8102 L102 jobie) SRR 1aplaoid Joenuon
. _
(Z102/50/01) S19e3U0D I8PIAOId 8102




LLOT/8/08 ' 6 jo g afieyd (penesony) Mmojasy sdng-preog Munon-isy] JoRauos §Loz\siveunaBy pue S10ejU0D £L0Z\UOIeNS WU YA

siapinoid |[e 10§ 38R 81 0Z 10} pays|qe)so 10U Seley.,., ]
g/u i0/AIQ# | edines|iad |snopea sojnos (1ad |snopen inpy snopen i snnuRuoD
B/U i0/NIQ# | ®eo1uas|iad |snouea agjnes |sad [snopen nnpy snopen UISUODSINN 818D
. "SN 03 }S00 ON-S891AI28 10} AJUNOD UOSIBPS YIIM S}ORIJUOD
Aenry eojnleg jeuoibay SO0 Juewsaiby [eyuswulanobisiul §0O0 |euoiBay paleyg Auno) 1y
B/U %0°0 wunjied ogzL Jun| 1od|0gZL aa 991y L 0} uuig S9OJARG UBWNK Auno) saxnemjin
842"}~ ypuow iad |ZG°904- Yjuow 25901~ Jeue) gor-juswiesiby Bueredo ama
ri'oe- %00 wuow Jed (£5°8/9'L- yuow Jed |€6°8/9'L- B/U sabieyy) aoedg |ejuss soeds QAAQ - UISUOISIAA JO 918)g
"]o} a|qisuodsal aq |[IM @M S9]E}S ISPIACId aU] YO[UM [BDIPSIN 8pn|dul JoU S80p 91l Siul,
000'¢ 10/AIQ# Inoy lsed |05-0Z inoylied [0G-02 sallen saojaieg Buluea|n : Ul ngz G8Z1-81
081292 %00 «Aep| Jad|00zeL +Aep| JedigozeL PIIUD SIEI Y P 98ss8UUS | -83BR|lI/\ YINOA v82Z-81
18¢ %00 Aepliad 108/ Aep|iad 10g° /L Py aydsey AJUNOJ 390y UIBUHON JO YONA £82|-81
B/ju i0O/AIQ# | uoisses| sad|ObL-GL - uojssas| JodioyL-gL pIUD andsay . swie] isqed je YOWA z8zi-81
000'9 %00 ieeh|sed |00°000'9 Jeah|tad {00°000'9 pIuD punorydeipn sl L Ajitie UISUOISIAA 1821-81
B/u %00 Aeplied |00°002°} Aepliad 10070021 HIA seo|neg Juspedy , UieoH |eloineyag sesid MOJIAN 08Zi-81
005'6% %00 Replied (00052 Aep|ssd 00052 HIN sad|Aleg juspedul 9IEOY}{E8H UBDISUBIL] UOJESYNA 6.2|-8
000'%2 %00 anoyiied |ge'gg anoylied |ge'gg HWN feoiBojoyohsd Pyd i@ - ueys ‘Blequalepn 8.2/-81
e/u iO/INIG# " Aeplsed |00°888 Aepiisd |00'ggg HIN sa0lAteg Juspedu| S92IAI8S UBWINH puB yijesH Jo Juswpedsq ‘AJunod Bysaxnepp 1121-81
B/U %00 |. Aeplisd (00671 Aeplied |0o'gzL pIYD y2Q ANr @inodg «Uonuale ainoag Aunoy) BYsanepn g/2|-8L
8.4'2 %00 Jeakiied (0082.'2 Jeak|sad 100822 pIuD SHSIA BWOH-U| Jusuniedaq yiesH UmoHaiem S.z|-8}t
e/u %0°GZ Kepliad {00051 Aeplied {000Z) PIYD 12Q ANp 21N09g »UoluaIa(q - Jlvys o uojbuiysenp yizl-g1
810z L102 jyobie] 9VINISG 19pInoid H%MHM_M
. , : —
(£102/S0/01) SI9€UOD I8PIAGId 817




Youth Justice Innovation Grant Application

e APRISON

If app(yinﬁin partnership, please list the partnering county(ies) or tribe(s):

County M;i!ing Address: |5LH Ah n6)£ 'Rd - jég\&’SOh; \/UI g;g‘{‘)

Street, City, Zip Code

Contact Person for this Proposal: :)253 ’\ Ca 6 O dezk- '

Name, Title ,

Contact mformattc#n% fo‘r co;xtact person: \ess ’ mq@ \C’C-QA’SD }’\CDU/C}\/W , O\O\/

EM! Address, Phone Number

Indicate whether you are applying for a $100,000 grant or a $250,000 grant {choose only one).
] We are applying for a $100,000 grant.

ﬁ We are applying for a $250,000 grant.

indicate which topic area your project addresses (choose only ane):

[]  school lustice Partnership (Quesiions on p.6)

Robust Case Planning {Questions on p.7)

D Alternatives to Detention {Questions on p.8)

Complete the set of questions that correspond to the area under which your project fits. You must pick only

one. '

Limit your response to five single-spaced pages. Use a minimum of 11 pt. font with 1 inch margins.

Label your responses to indicate which guestion and sub-question is being addressed. . ;




Eligibility for a Youth Justice lnnpvatidn Grant requires consent to the criteria below.
Please check each box to acknowledge your acceptance of these terms. '

| agree to commit the time of the appropriate team and other necessary staff to present to
other counties as required.

w | agree to participate in project evaluation activities.

ﬁ I have reviewed and approved the content of this application.

Please sign and date below.

va Diector sl

County Human and Social Services Director Date




Jefferson County is excited to take the opportunity to enhance and roll out a well thought out,
robust, family case management framework that includes treatment options that utilize evidenced
based practices to address mental health and AODA needs in a proven fashion, and contingency
management that rewards positive behavior. The project is described in detail over the course of this
application, and will include a description of the proposed project, how it meets the elements of robust
case planning, how Jefferson County will engage system stakeholders and how Jefferson County will
sustain the program after the grant allocation has ended.

1. Describe your proposed project.
Goal and Qutcomes Sought:

The goal of the proposed project is to offer a new Youth Justice program that marries Functional
Family Case Management with a fully integrated family incentive program that also offers a service array
that addresses the underlying issues that have led families to the youth justice program. This program
will be individualized and unique to each family and will be offered to all families involved in youth
justice at Jefferson County Human Services Department (JCHSD).

The proposed project seeks the following outcomes: Increase youth and family participationin a
family-centered, strengths-based system of care; Reduce opposition between youth and their families as
they instead work in concert toward shared and individual goals; Increase the number of youth residing
in a family setting ; Decrease the number of out of home placements ; Decrease length of time in an out
of home placement; Increase parenting capacities; Increase overall family satisfaction and functioning;

and specific outcomes listed in the Search Institute’s 40 Developmental Assets (www.search-

institute.org/content/40-developmental-assets-adolescents-ages-12-18).

~ Target Population - o
The proposed project will target all* ongoing Youth Justice participants and families, including

youth on Juvenile Delinquency orders, Juvenile in Need of Protection or Services (JIPS) orders, Consent
Decrees, Chapter 51 orders, Deferred Prosecution Agreements, as well as voluntary cases. It is
important to note that we do not want to overserve youth who do not belong in the youth justice
system, and the understanding is that those youth who score on the risk assessment tool as very low risk
and whose needs do not rise to the level of needing intervention, will not be “sent up” to the ongoing
unit; and only those whose needs rise to the level of needing intervention will receive these services.
Additionally, this program is strength based and focuses on addressing core family issues. It is built upon
serving each family individually, building unique incentive and treatment plans that will assist families to
connect better with each other and improve overall functioning.

In order to offer this enhanced program to all of our eligible families, Spanish speaking interpreters will
be utilized while select workers are being taught to speak conversational Spanish through a language
software program. Eventually, it is the hope that workers that already have a base level understanding
of the Spanish language can be taught and coached to fluency in order to provide this program to our
Spanish speaking families long term,

Key Activities/Elements/How We Will Achieve Goals and Outcomes:

The proposed project will offer four key programmatic elements supported by four evidence-
based therapy/counseling practices. First, the respective youth and family’s general needs will be
assessed through the use of the youth assessment too} ** in the intake stage. Second, and also in the
first 30 days, which also falls into the engagement phase of Functional Family Case Management, the
assigned worker will subsequently use a comprehensive assessment of the youth and his/her family to
determine different life domains, including trauma, life satisfaction, strengths, mental health, family




functioning and other indicators. The results of this focused assessment will inform a goal-driven care
plan that is created with the family to determine what the case manager will assist with and what
services need to be put in place. Third, the care plan will specifically include a family-based incentive
program. The use of incentives is an effective, evidence-hased modality to influence positive behavior
change. This family incentive model uniquely approaches the strategy of incentivizing behavior change
through teaming and the family construct. Moving forward this planning process will allow Youth
Services staff to provide incentives for attendance and participation in therapy, mentoring, planning,
school performance, AODA work, and family activities. This approach has been successful with our youth
and we would like to expand the concept to the entire family to enrich the family system as a whole
with incentives such as gift cards, family activities, restitution payments, later curfew, “nights out” and
dinners, to name a few. Jefferson County plans to optimize technology and implement a timely and
effective means of reporting and recording incentives earned. For example, Jlefferson County is
exploring the option of installing an “app” on smart phones that could track activities and incentives and
update family members immediately of points earned. Fourth, this youth and family program will be
planned unique to each family, implemented and monitored using Functional Family Case Management,
or as it is referred to by FFTLLC, Functional Family Probation. (We do not refer to our Youth Justice
program as probation and choose to use the term Function Family Case Management. However for the
purpose of siting the source from which our information is obtained, we will use Functional Family
Probation or FFP to describe this part of the service).

According to FFTLLC.com, “FFP® reorients the focus of juvenile justice workers charged with
supervising youth in the community by clarifying their roles and understanding that case management
occurs in distinct phases. By applying the right goals, skills and activities at the right time, the model
creates a coherence that helps workers stay on track despite what are often very complicated client
situations, risks and histories. FFP®'s first step expands the target of intervention beyond just the
youth. From the very beginning, FFP®-trained workers consistently meet with families. Goals of the
program include identifying challenges and strengths critical to change throughout family system and
helping both workers and family members see that solutions and changes are possible. In doing so,
youth and families are more motivated to more fully take part in interventions via specific techniques
that enhance youth and family involvement. In keeping with our idea that change occurs in phases,
FFP® then understands how interventions are best selected and how youth/families are most effectively
linked to, supported and monitored in those change programs.

Additionally, the above key elements of this new programming will be augmented by our
existing Community Outreach Services, in addition to four evidence-based practices:

Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) - DBT is a cognitive behavioral treatment that was originally
developed to treat chronically suicidal individuals diagnosed with borderline personality disorder (BPD)
and it is now recognized as the gold standard psychological treatment for this population.
{http://behavioraitech.org/resources/whatisdbt.cfm). Jefferson County would like to train all of our
Youth Services staff in Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) as an evidenced based way to work with youth
and family members with certain mentai health issues as well as alcohol and drugs in the family.
Functional Family Therapy (FFT) - FFT is a short-term family therapy intervention and juvenile diversion
program that assists youth to overcome adolescent behavior problems, conduct disorder, substance
abuse, and delinquency. Core components include assessing family behaviors that maintain delinquent
behavior, modifying dysfunctional family communication, training family members to negotiate
effectively, setting clear rules about privileges and responsibilities, and generalizing changes to
community contexts and relationships (http://www.blueprintsprograms.com/factsheet/functional-
family-therapy-fft). FFTis evidenced based and proven effective in both preventing and treating
delinquency behaviors. Jefferson County will continue to offer Functional Family Therapy via Lutheran
Social Services as a proven method of decreasing delinquency behavior and keeping youth in the home




as recognized by FFT, INC. Participation in sessions and weekly homework can be rewarded with
incentives.

Trauma-focused Cognitive Behavior Therapy (TF-CBT) - Trauma Focused Coghnitive Behavior Therapy
(TF-CBT) is a components-based model of psychotherapy that addresses the unique needs of children
with PTSD symptoms, depression, behavior problems, and other difficulties related to traumatic life
experiences. {http://www.nctsn.org/sites/default/files/assets/pdfs/tfcbt general.pdf). As part of this
program, Jefferson County would contract or hire a TF-CBT clinician dedicated for our youth services
team. This position will allow for immediate access to evaluation, treatment and work.

Motivational Interviewing - Motivational Interviewing (MI) is a goal-directed, client-centered
communication and engagement style for eliciting behavioral change by helping clients to explore and
resolve ambivalence (http://www.nrepp.samhsa.gov/ViewIntervention.aspx?id=346). It can be used in
tandem with FFCM. All members of the Youth Justice Team have been trained in Motivational
Interviewing and have achieved either basic or competent level of practice. All Y workers will continue
to receive as much training as they need in order to achieve proficiency level. Jefferson County knows
that Mi works as a way to move families toward positive change and is committed to cffering proficient
M to all families.

Overview of How Jefferson County will utilize the $250,000:

Contracted Providers - Grant monies will be used to pay Lutheran Social Services/FFT contract. Each Y)
family “slot” will be fully funded by the grant and there will be no cost to the families.

Salaries - Two staff members who currently serve as Community Outreach Workers on the Youth Justice
Team will now be taking on the roles of Family Case Managers, and therefore will need to be
compensated as such. Their rate of pay will be equal-to.the ongoing YJ Case Managers, and this will be
accomplished through grant monies. Salaries will be sustained at this level, as these workers.will now be
Medicaid billable, as they will be doing Targeted Case Management with the families. Currently, they do
not have the ability to bill or recoup any costs for the agency.

Risk Assessment Tool - Currently, Jefferson County utilizes the Compas risk assessment tool at the

- intake level; a tool we feel does not meet our families’ needs in the best way possible. We feel thata
better tool could be used, and we would like to use grant monies to purchase that tool (with the
understanding that the state issued assessment tool will take some time to administer and that
Jefferson County will move to that tool when it has been determined).

Training - Eight Family Case Managers will be fully trained in the following areas: the new risk
assessment tool and case planning, Functional Family Case Management, DBT and Spanish Speaking
Language Software for interested case managers with some Spanish language skills.

Technology - Eight smart phones with data plans will be purchased so that each case manager can
install the app to set up and manage each family’s incentive program. Three to five tablets will be
purchased for case managers to utilize at team meetings where a parent or important family member
cannot attend a team meeting due to distance or inability. .

Family Friendly Meeting Space - ICHSD would like to update a room at the Department that is family
friendly and trauma informed to hold family team meetings and conduct TECBT sessions. This would
include painting, updating storage spaces, adding different technology, adding more comfortable
seating and tables and décor that make the room feel more inviting to families.

Incentives - Individual family members and family units can earn incentives that hold monetary value for
participating in services and activities that help them to function better and achieve positive family
outcomes. Grant monies will be used to purchase monetary incentives. Restitution payments can be
earned as part of the incentive program. For example, a youth may choose to use partial or all of their




points/bucks to apply toward their restitution, rather than a privilege or item with monetary value.
Those payments would come from grant monies.

How Does the Project Meet the Required Elements of Robust Case Planning?

A&B: Tailored Services to Address Environment Factors Underlying Behavior - As part of this program,
each youth and family’s strengths and needs will be assessed within the first 30 days of case assignment
using the results of the risk assessment tool, as well as the Targeted Case Management (TCM)
assessment that is designed during the FFCM engagement phase to gather key information in the areas
of: life satisfaction, strengths, trauma and significant life issues, legal issues, employment, education,
physical health, mental health, substance abuse, medications, social network and family involvement,
family structure, family decision making, family relationships, resources and support, ability of family to
provide for children’s needs, housing, community living, crisis prevention and management, treatment
needs and recovery goals. The information gathered in these assessments, particularly the individual
and family strengths and needs, will help guide the family’s individual service/care and incentive plan.
The TCM assessment in particular really gets to the core of what is holding the family back from
functioning in a healthier manner, and the service/care and incentive plan designs a roadmap for how
families can get to a better place through individualized activities and services with incentives that
reinforce participation in activities that help to heal their family.

C. Skill Building and Practice — As stated above, this family based program includes a care plan
designed individually for each family. The family is at the center of that design, and it is the role of the
family services worker to work within the construct of Functional Family Case Management phases and
assist the family in creating that specialized support and intervention plan, as well as to provide skill
building exercises and connect families to appropriate resources that will. help them to build their skills.
D. Structure Throughout the Life of the Case — this case planning model that Jefferson County is
proposing includes a very structured case management model, Functional Family Case Management.
This model includes regular family meetings and works with families in three separate phases:
Engagement and Motivation, Support and Monitor and Generalization. This structure gives both the
family and the worker great direction and guidance throughout the life of the case.

3. How Will We Include and Inform our Stakeholders of New Approach?

Jefferson County supports open communication and dialogue about our programming with our
agency and community partners. We understand that there may be some discrepancies in how we and
our stakeholders look at this enhanced way of serving our families. It is for this reason, as well as to
create buy in and further our partnerships, that our Division Manager, along with the supervisor and
certain members of the Youth Justice Team will deliver presentations on our new robust case planning
model to key partners as follows:

* Judge’s Roundtable — Jefferson County Circuit Court has two new judges that handle juvenite
case and are open to discussing issues and topics that come up in a roundtable fashion that
includes the judge(s) Human Services management and supervisors, attorneys from the district
attorney’s office and public defender’s office, GAL's and attorneys from the private bar, and key
courthouse staff. '

¢ Monthly DA’s meetings — Children’s Division management and supervisors meet monthly with
our Juvenile ADA’s each month to discuss talking points.

¢ School in-service meetings — lefferson County partners with school districts in the county each
year to provide staff and teacher training on various topics, including programming
presentations. ‘



e Agency “lunch and learns” — teams can sign up to present new programming and learning
opportunities to anyone who works for Jefferson County Human Services. Many internal

stakeholders, such as internal mental health and AODA providers, Children’s Long Term Waiver i

providers, CST workers and Child Protective Services workers (to name a few) are invited to
those lunch trainings.

e Morning Magazine — there is a forum to present this mformatlon via a radio talk show that we
have utilized in the past to inform community members of important components of our
programming, such as Youth Justice Awareness month and Child Abuse Prevention Month. We
can present our new programming on Morning Magazine, WFAW to reach a broader audience
and get community buy in and support.

4, Sustainability:
Jefferson County has chosen the Functional Family Case Management model to add structure to

the case planning process, not only because it houses the strength and solution focused, family focused

philosophies of working with youth, but also because its structure can be matched to Targeted Case

Management; and those services can be billed to Medical Assistance. This allows Jefferson County to

recoup some of the costs of the program and help to fund it moving forward. Also, internal contracted

providers {for therapies such as TF-CBT} can also recoup money by billing the family’s insurance, thus

not relying on the grant funds.
Secondly, in order to effectively build capacity, increase resources, and improve readiness, the

agency will evaluate existing community partnerships and identify capacity gaps. Subsequently, a

. comprehensive plan will develop capacity and recruitment efforts by engaging and raising awareness of

- “existing community partnerships as well as new adjunct community supports. For'example, many
incentives can be acquired through community partnerships that provide in-kind donations. Jefferson
County has many great community businesses that have shown interest in the past in partnering with us
to help our community or who we could reach out to in an effort to increase our partnerships with local
vendors. Jefferson County will reach out to area businesses to explain our mission and solicit items such
as gift cards, monetary donations and other goods that could be used as incentives for families.

Thirdly, the Youth Justice Team already engages in fundraising efforts year round to support our
programming. These efforts will continue to sustain our incentives program, as money raised at these
events is used to purchase gift cards and trinkets for families, as well as to fund family friendly JCHSD
sponsored activities. It is also noted that incentives earned by family members do not all have monetary
value, which helps sustain programming.

Fourthly, some of the programs connected to this integrated family case management and
incentive program are billable through Medical Assistance programs such as Comprehensive Community
Services (CCS) or Children’s Long Term Support Waiver (CLTSW) programs, if included in their plans. For
example, Functional Family Therapy, if written into a youth's recovery plan, can be covered by MA and
would not have to be paid for by the grant or tax levy dollars after the grant has expired.

Lastly, one of our desired outcomes of this program is to increase family connections and decrease the
number of and length of time in out-of-home placements. This frees up money in the budget that can

be used to sustain this program on an ongoing basis.

* youth who reside in residential care centers, treatment foster homes or group homes outside of a 60 mile radius and youth
who lack any type of family involvement may not be appropriate or eligible for this programming. We will give as many
components of this program as possible (ie, incentives, TFCBT, DBT, M), etc.) to these youth.

*¥ Currently, JCHSD uses the Compas and will cantinue to do so until DCF makes a decision on a statewide assessment. The
new tool will be purchased and staff will be trained as soon as we learn what tool the State of Wisconsin has chosen.




\oa

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-___

Suing opioid pharmaceutical companies to recover county costs associated
opioid abuse

Executive Summary

Between 1999 and 2013, the amount of opioids dispensed in the United States quadrupled, with
nearly 207 million opioid prescriptions being written in 2013 and almost 259 million in 2014.
Opioid sales were nearly $10 billion in 2015. According to 2015 data from the National Survey
on Drug Use and Health, in 2013 over one third of United States citizens had used prescription
opioids, with a significant number of those resulting in addiction. The Wisconsin Counties
Association has researched this issue and found that lawsuits filed in other states have alleged
that certain pharmaceutical companies knew that profits could significantly increase if they
were able to market and sell opioids for long-term use. In order to expand their market and
achieve a dramatic increase in profits, some companies decided to create a marketing campaign
designed to give the medical community and the public the false impression that opioids were
safe for long-term use. This false marketing campaign is responsible for what is commonly
referred to as the Opioid Epidemic.

The Wisconsin counties of Wood, Adams and Price have already agreed to become parties to
the lawsuit and the Wisconsin Counties Association expects at least 60 more Wisconsin
counties to join the lawsuit. Pursuing claims against certain opioid manufacturers will hold
those persons and entities that had a significant role in the creation of the Opioid Epidemic
responsible for the financial costs incurred by Jefferson County and other public agencies
across the state and country in dealing with the Opioid Epidemic.

The Administration & Rules Committee met on September 27, 2017, and recommended forwarding
this resolution to the County Board for approval.

WHEREAS, the Executive Summary is incorporated into this resolution, and

WHEREAS, the rapid rise in the abuse and overuse of opioids throughout the country has
been well documented through various reports and publications, and is commonly referred to as
the Opioid Epidemic, and

WHEREAS, issues and concerns surrounding the Opioid Epidemic affect all Wisconsin
counties, including Jefferson County, and

WHEREAS, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, societal costs
associated with the Opioid Epidemic amount to over $75 billion annually throughout the
country, and




WHEREAS, the National Institute for Health has identified the manufacturers of
certain opioid medications as being directly responsible for the Opioid Epidemic by virtue of
their aggressive and, according to some, unlawful and unethical marketing practices, and

WHEREAS, opioid manufacturers have been held civilly and criminally accountable
for their actions that relate directly to the Opioid Epidemic, and

WHEREAS, Jefferson County has spent millions of dollars in unexpected and
unbudgeted time and resources through its programs and services responding to the Opioid
Epidemic, and

WHEREAS, time and resources that Jefferson County expends responding to the Opioid
Epidemic are time and resources that could be used for other critical Jefferson County
programs and services, and

WHEREAS, numerous states and counties throughout the country have filed or intend to
file lawsuits against certain opioid manufacturers in an effort to force the persons and entities
responsible for the Opioid Epidemic to assume financial responsibility for the costs associated
with addressing, combatting and otherwise dealing with the Opioid Epidemic, and

WHEREAS, Jefferson County officials have engaged in discussions with representatives
of the law firms of von Briesen & Roper, S.C., Crueger Dickinson LLC and Simmons Hanly
Conroy LLC (the “Law Firms”) to discuss legal claims against certain opioid manufacturers, and

WHEREAS, the Law Firms have proposed that Jefferson County engage the Law
Firms to prosecute the aforementioned claims on a contingent fee basis whereby the Law
Firms would not be compensated unless Jefferson County receives a financial benefit as a
result of the proposed claims and the Law Firms would advance all claim-related costs and
expenses associated with the claims, and

WHEREAS, all of the costs and expenses associated with the claims against certain
opioid manufacturers would be borne by the Law Firms, and

WHEREAS, the Law Firms have prepared an engagement letter, which is submitted
as part of this Resolution (“Engagement Letter”) specifying the terms and conditions under
which the Law Firms would provide legal services to Jefferson County, consistent with the
terms of this Resolution, and

WHEREAS, the Wisconsin Counties Association has engaged in extensive discussions
with the Law Firms and has expressed a desire to assist in the prosecution of claims
against certain opioid manufacturers, and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Jefferson County, its citizens, residents, visitors
and taxpayers to join with other counties, inside and outside of Wisconsin, in pursuit of claims
against certain opioid manufacturers.




NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Jefferson County authorizes its County
Administrator to execute an Engagement Letter on behalf of Jefferson County with substantially
similar terms and conditions as set forth in the attached Engagement Letter, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Jefferson County shall endeavor to faithfully
perform all actions required to advance the claims contemplated herein and set forth in the
Engagement Letter

Fiscal Note: This resolution will have no cost to Jefferson County and may have a financial
benefit depending on the outcome of the lawsuit.

Ayes Noes Abstain Absent Vacant

Requested by
Administration & Rules Committee 10-10-17

J. Blair Ward: 10-04-17
REVIEWED: Administrator ; Corp. Counsel ; Finance Director



Crueger Bri:
D %ﬁk]élﬁ Ef; @:}KE von Briesen & Roper, s.c. | Attorneys at Law

September 5, 2017

=

VIiA EMAIL

[Name] County
c/o [County Board Chair, Executive, Administrator]
[Address]

RE: Engagement of von Briesen & Roper, s.c., and Crueger Dickinson LLC, Together with
Simmons Hanly Conroy LLC, as Counsel in Relation to Claims Against Opioid
Manufacturers

Dear [Name]:

The purpose of this letter (“Engagement Letter”) is to set out in writing the terms and conditions
upon which the law firms of von Briesen & Roper, s.c., and Crueger Dickinson LLC (collectively
“Counsel) will provide legal services to [NAME OF COUNTY] (“County”) in relation to the
investigation and prosecution of certain claims against the following manufacturers and other parties
involved with the manufacture of opioid medications: Purdue Pharma L.P., Purdue Pharma Inc., The
Purdue Frederick Company, Inc., Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc., Cephalon, Inc., Johnson &
Johnson, Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., OrthoMcNeil-Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. n/k/a Janssen
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Janssen Pharmaceutica, Inc. n/k/a Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; Endo Health
Solutions Inc., Endo Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Russell Portenoy, Perry Fine, Scott Fishman and Lynn
Webster (collectively “Opioid Manufacturers”). Depending upon the results of initial investigations
of the facts and circumstances surrounding the potential claim(s), there may be additional parties
sought to be made responsible and/or certain of the aforementioned parties may be removed from the
potential claim.

This Engagement Letter shall apply solely and exclusively to the services set forth herein in relation
to the investigation and Lawsuit, as defined below. This Engagement Letter does not govern, nor
does it apply to, any services of either Counsel unrelated thereto.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Counsel will work with County in the collection of information necessary to form a good faith basis
for filing a claim against the Opioid Manufacturers. County hereby authorizes Counsel to file a
lawsuit against one or all of the Opioid Manufacturers (“Lawsuit”) upon the terms and conditions set
forth herein.

RESPONSIBILITIES

Counsel will prosecute the Lawsuit with diligence and keep County reasonably informed of progress
and developments, and respond to County’s inquiries. County understands and agrees that Counsel,
on behalf of County, will engage the services of the nationally-recognized law firm Simmons Hanly
Conroy LLC, which has demonstrated experience prosecuting claims against Opioid Manufacturers
(“National Law Firm™) and which, in addition to Crueger Dickinson LLC, will serve as counsel of
record for County in relation to the Lawsuit. County understands and agrees that all fees paid to
Counsel and National Law Firm shall be as set forth in this Engagement Letter. County shall not be
responsible for any fees and expenses of National Law Firm beyond the fees and expenses for which
County has agreed to be responsible as set forth herein. County agrees to cooperate with Counsel




[Name] County
Engagement Letter
Page -2

and National Law Firm in the gathering of information necessary to investigate and prosecute the
Lawsuit. County further understands and agrees that the law firm of von Briesen & Roper, s.c., shall
not be identified on any pleading as counsel of record for County in relation to the Lawsuit, but shall
be available to assist County and Counsel and National Law Firm in relation to the Lawsuit.

The following additional terms apply to the relationship between County, Counsel and National Law
Firm:

A. von Briesen & Roper, s.c., and Crueger Dickinson LLC shall remain sufficiently
aware of the performance of one another and the performance of National Law Firm
to ascertain if each firm’s handling of the Lawsuit conforms to the Rules of
Professional Conduct. Both von Briesen & Roper, s.c., and Crueger Dickinson LLC
shall be available to County regarding any concerns on the part of County relating to
the performance of Counsel and/or National Law Firm. Counsel shall at all times
remain ethically and financially responsible to the County for the services of Counsel
and National Law Firm set forth herein.

B. As set forth below, County’s responsibility for attorney fees and expenses is
contingent upon the successful outcome of the Lawsuit, as further defined below.
Counsel and National Law Firm have agreed in writing as to the appropriate split of
attorney fees and expenses upon the engagement of National Law Firm. Specifically,
in the event of a Recovery (as defined below), the attorney fees will be split between
the law firms as follows:

FirmName PercentageofFeesifSuccessful
von Briesen & Roper, s.c. 10%
Crueger Dickinson LLC 45%

Simmons Hanly Conroy LLC 45%

The split of attorneys’ fees between Counsel and National Law Firm may be subject
to change. In the event of such an amendment, the County will be notified in writing
of that amendment.

C. Counsel and County understand and agree that Counsel and National Law Firm will
all be considered attorneys for County. As such, each and all of Counsel and National
Law Firm will adhere to the Rules of Professional Responsibility governing the
relationship between attorney and client.

ACTUAL AND POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND WAIVER OF CONFLICT

As County is aware, Counsel and National Law Firm contemplate entering into the same
arrangement as that set forth in this Engagement Letter with other counties and municipalities in
Wisconsin and elsewhere. Counsel and National Law Firm believe that the goals and objectives of
County are aligned with the goals and objectives of all other counties and municipalities with respect
to the Lawsuit. Counsel and National Law Firm do not believe that to achieve the goals of the
Lawsuit, either County or another county or municipality must take a position that is adverse to the
interests of the other. However, to the extent any issue may arise in this matter about which County



[Name] County
Engagement Letter
Page -3

disagrees with another county or municipality, and one of you may wish to pursue a course that
benefits one but is detrimental to the interest of the other, we cannot advise County or assist County
or any other county or municipality in pursuing such a course. That is to say, Counsel and National
Law Firm cannot advocate for County’s individual interests at the expense of the other counties or
municipalities that Counsel and National Law Firm represent in a Lawsuit. Counsel and National
Law Firm do not believe that this poses a problem because County’s interests are currently aligned
with the other counties and municipalities that are or may be in the Lawsuit. Counsel and National
Law Firm are confident that their representation of County will not be limited in this matter by
representation of any other county or municipality, but County should consider these consequences
of joint representation in deciding whether to waive this conflict.

In addition to the material limitation discussed above, there are other consequences for County in
agreeing to joint representation. Because each county or municipality would be a client of Counsel
and National Law Firm, Counsel and National Law Firm owe equal duties of loyalty and
communication to each client. As such, Counsel and National Law Firm must share all relevant
information with all counties and municipalities who are clients in relation to the Lawsuit and
Counsel and National Law Firm cannot, at the request of one county or municipality, withhold
relevant information from the other client. That is to say, Counsel and National Law Firm cannot
keep secrets about this matter among the counties and municipalities who are clients of Counsel and
National Law Firm with respect to the Lawsuit. Also, lawyers normally cannot be forced to divulge
information about communications with their clients because it is protected by the attorney-client
privilege. However, because County would be a joint client in the same matter with other counties
and municipalities, it is likely that were there to be a future legal dispute between County and other
counties or municipalities that engage Counsel and National Law Firm about this matter, the
attorney-client privilege would not apply, and each would not be able to invoke the privilege against
the claims of the other.

Further, while County’s position is in harmony with other counties and municipalities presently, and
the conflict discussed above is waivable, facts and circumstances may change. For example, County
may change its mind and wish to pursue a course that is adverse to the interests of another county or
municipality and the conflict may become unwaivable. In that case, depending upon the
circumstances, Counsel and National Law Firm may have to withdraw from representing either
County or another county or municipality and County would have to bear the expense, if County
chooses, of hiring new lawyers who would have to get up to speed on the matter.

County is not required to agree to waive this conflict, and County may, after considering the risks
involved in joint representation, decline to sign this Engagement Letter. By signing this Engagement
Letter, County is signifying its consent to waiving the conflict of interest discussed herein.

Other than the facts and circumstances related to the joint representation of numerous counties and
municipalities, Counsel and National Law Firm are unaware of any facts or circumstances that would
prohibit Counsel and/or National Law Firm from providing the services set forth in this Engagement
Letter. However, it is important to note that the law firm of von Briesen & Roper, s.c., is a relatively
large law firm based in Wisconsin and represents many companies and individuals. It is possible that
some present and future clients of von Briesen & Roper, s.c., will have business relationships and
potential or actual disputes with County. von Briesen & Roper, s.c., will not knowingly represent
clients in matters that are actually adverse to the interests of County without County’s permission and
informed consent. von Briesen & Roper, s.c, respectfully requests that County consent, on a case by
case basis, to von Briesen & Roper, s.c.’s representation of other clients whose interests are, or
maybe adverse to, the interests of County in circumstances where County has selected other counsel
and where von Briesen & Roper, s.c., has requested a written conflict waiver from County after being



[Name] County
Engagement Letter
Page -4

advised of the circumstances of the potential or actual conflict and County has provided informed
consent.

FEES FOR LEGAL SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR EXPENSES

A, CalculationofContingentFee

There is no fee for the services provided herein unless a monetary recovery acceptable to County is
obtained by Counsel and National Law Firm in favor of County, whether by suit, settlement, or
otherwise (“Recovery”). County understands and agrees that a Recovery may occur in any number
of different fashions such as final judgment in the Lawsuit, settlement of the Lawsuit, or
appropriation to County following a nationwide settlement or extinguishing of claims in lawsuits and
matters similar to the Lawsuit. Counsel and National Law Firm agree to advance all costs and
expenses of Counsel, National Law Firm and the Lawsuit associated with investigating and
prosecuting the Lawsuit provided, however, that the costs and expenses associated with County
cooperating with Counsel and National Law Firm in conjunction with the Lawsuit and otherwise
performing its responsibilities under this Engagement Letter are the responsibility of County. In
consideration of the legal services to be rendered by Counsel and National Law Firm, the contingent
attorneys’ fees for the services set forth in this Engagement Letter shall be a gross fee of 25% of the
Recovery, which sum shall be divided among Counsel and National Law Firm as set forth in the
above chart.

Upon the application of the applicable fee percentage to the gross Recovery, and that dollar amount
set aside as attorneys’ fees to Counsel and National Law Firm, the amount remaining shall first be
reduced by the costs and disbursements that have been advanced by Counsel and National Law Firm,
and that amount shall be remitted to Counsel and National Law Firm. By way of example only, if the
gross amount of the Recovery is $1,000,000.00, and costs and disbursements are $100,000.00, then
the fee to Counsel and National Law Firm shall be $250,000, the costs amount of $100,000 shall be
deducted from the balance of $750,000.00, and the net balance owed to County shall be $650,000.
The costs and disbursements which may be deducted from a Recovery include, but are not limited to,
the following, without limitation: court fees, process server fees, transcript fees, expert witness fees
and expenses, courier service fees, appellate printing fees, necessary travel expenses of attorneys to
attend depositions, interview witnesses, attend meetings related to the scope of this Engagement
Letter and the like, and other appropriate matter related out-of-pocket expenses. In the event that any
Recovery results in a monetary payment to County that is less than the amount of the costs incurred
and/or disbursements made by Counsel and National Law Firm, County shall not be required to pay
Counsel and National Law Firm any more than the sum of the full Recovery.

B. NatureofContingentFee

No monies shall be paid to Counsel or National Law Firm for any work performed, costs incurred or
disbursements made by Counsel or National Law Firm in the event no Recovery to County has been
obtained. In the event of a loss at trial due to an adverse jury verdict or a dismissal of the Lawsuit by
the court, no monies shall be paid to Counsel or National Law Firm for any work performed, costs
incurred or disbursements made by Counsel or National Law Firm. In such an event, neither party
shall have any further rights against the other.

C. DisbursementofRecoveryProceedstoCounty

The proceeds of any Recovery on County’s behalf under the terms of this Engagement Letter shall be
disbursed to County as soon as reasonably practicable after receipt by Counsel and National Law



[Name] County
Engagement Letter
Page -5

Firm. At the time of disbursement of any proceeds from a Recovery, County will be provided with a
detailed disbursement sheet reflecting the method by which attorney’s fees have been calculated and
the expenses of litigation that are due to Counsel and National Law Firm from such proceeds.
Counsel and National Law Firm are authorized to retain out of any moneys that may come into their
hands by reason of their representation of County the fees, costs, expenses and disbursements to
which they are entitled as determined in this Engagement Letter.

TERMINATION OF REPRESENTATION

This Engagement Letter shall cover the period from the date first indicated below until the
termination of the legal services rendered hereunder, unless earlier terminated as provided herein.
This Engagement Letter may be terminated by County at any time, and in the event of such
termination, neither party shall have any further rights against the other, except that in the event of a
Recovery by County against the Opioid Manufacturers subsequent to termination, Counsel and
National Law Firm shall have a statutory lien on any such recovery as provided by applicable law
and further maintain rights in the nature of quantum meruit to recover fees, costs and expenses
reasonably allocable to their work prior to termination. Counsel and National Law Firm may
withdraw as County’s attorneys at any time for the following reasons:

A. If Counsel and National Law Firm determine, in their sole discretion, that County’s
claim lacks merit or that it is not worthwhile to pursue the Lawsuit further; or

B. For Good Cause. For purposes of this Paragraph, Good Cause may include County’s
failure to honor the terms of the Engagement Letter, County’s failure to follow
Counsel or National Law Firm’s advice on a material matter, or any fact or
circumstance that would, in the view of Counsel or National Law Firm, impair an
effective attorney-client relationship or would render continuing representation
unlawful or unethical. If terminated for Good Cause, County will take all steps
necessary to free Counsel and National Law Firm of any obligation to perform
further, including the execution of any documents (including forms for substitution of
counsel) necessary to complete withdrawal provided, however, that Counsel and
National Law Firm shall have a statutory lien on any Recovery as provided by
applicable law and further maintain rights in the nature of quantum meruit to recover
fees, costs and expenses reasonably allocable to their work prior to termination.

SETTLEMENT

County has the authority to accept or reject any final settlement amount after receiving the advice of
Counsel and National Law Firm. County understands settlements are a “compromise” of its claim(s),
and that Counsel and National Law Firm’s fee, as set forth above, applies to settlements also. For
example, if a settlement is reached, and includes future or structured payments, Counsel and National
Law Firm’s fee shall include its contingent portion of those future or structured payments.

NO GUARANTEE OF RECOVERY

County understands and acknowledges that dispute resolution through litigation often takes years to
achieve. County understands and acknowledges that there is no guarantee or assurances of any kind
regarding the likelihood of success of the Lawsuit, but that Counsel and National Law Firm will use
their skill, diligence, and experience to diligently pursue the Lawsuit.

LIMITED LIABILITY



[Name] County
Engagement Letter
Page -6

von Briesen & Roper, s.c., and Crueger Dickinson LLC are limited liability entities under Wisconsin
law. This means that if Counsel fails to perform duties in the representation of County and that
failure causes County damages, the firms comprising Counsel and the shareholder(s) or principals
directly involved in the representation may be responsible to County for those damages, but the
firm’s other shareholders or principals will not be personally responsible. Counsel’s professional
liability insurance exceeds the minimum amounts required by the Wisconsin Supreme Court for
limited liability entities of similar size.

COMMUNICATION BY E-MAIL

Counsel and National Law Firm primarily communicate with their clients via unencrypted internet e-
mail, and this will be the way in which communications occur with County. While unencrypted e-
mail is convenient and fast, there is risk of interception, not only within internal networks and the
systems used by internet service providers, but elsewhere on the internet and in the systems of our
clients and their internet service providers.

FILE RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION

In accordance with Counsel and National Law Firm’s records retention policy, most paper and
electronic records maintained are subject to a 10-year retention period from the last matter activity
date or whatever date deemed appropriate. Extended retention periods may apply to certain types of
matters or pursuant to County’s specific directives.

After the expiration of the applicable retention period, Counsel and National Law Firm will destroy
records without further notice to County, unless County otherwise notifies in writing.

MISCELLANEOUS

This Engagement Letter shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of Wisconsin, without regard to conflicts of law rules. In the event of any dispute arising out of the
terms of this Engagement Letter, venue for any such dispute shall be exclusively designated in the
State of Wisconsin Circuit Court for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, or in the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin.

It is expressly agreed that this Engagement Letter represents the entire agreement of the parties, that
all previous understandings are merged in this Engagement Letter, and that no modification of this
Engagement Letter shall be valid unless written and executed by all parties.

It is expressly agreed that if any term or provision of this Engagement Letter, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstance, shall be held invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the
remainder of this Engagement Letter, or the application of such term or provision to persons or
circumstances other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected
thereby; and every other term and provision of this Engagement Letter shall be valid and shall be
enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

The parties acknowledge that they have carefully read and fully understand all of the provisions of
this Engagement Letter, and that they have the capacity to enter into this Engagement Letter. Each
party and the person signing on behalf of each party, represents that the person signing this
Engagement Letter has the authority to execute this document and thereby bind the party hereto on
whose behalf the person is signing. Specifically, County acknowledges that it is bound by this
Engagement Letter, has satisfied all conditions precedent to execution of this Engagement Letter and
will execute all the necessary documents that may be required by its governing statutes and/or code.



[Name] County
Engagement Letter

Page -7
CONCLUSION

Counsel and National Law Firm are pleased to have this opportunity to be of service to County. If at
any time during the course of representation you have any questions or comments about our services
or any aspect of how we provide services, please don’t hesitate to call one or all of the individuals
listed below.

Very truly yours,
von BRIESEN & ROPER, s.c. CRUEGER DICKINSON LLC
Andrew T. Phillips Erin K. Dickinson

SIMONS HANLY CONROY LLC (Acknowledged)

Paul J. Hanly, Jr.

[INAME] COUNTY agrees to retain the services of Counsel and National Law Firm all upon the
terms and conditions specified above.

By: Date:

Title:

cc: Corporation Counsel

29243067_1.DOCX



